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PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION
 
 Item 1. Consolidated Financial Statements

CHENIERE ENERGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
 CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(in thousands, except share data)
 

   
June 30,

2007   
December 31,

2006  
   (unaudited)     

ASSETS    
CURRENT ASSETS    

Cash and cash equivalents   $ 710,802  $ 462,963 
Restricted cash and cash equivalents    195,337   176,827 
Interest receivable    7,833   6,642 
Accounts receivable    12,126   1,299 
Derivative assets    395   —   
Prepaid expenses and other    8,927   2,242 

  

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS    935,420   649,973 
NON-CURRENT RESTRICTED CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS    737,515   1,071,722 
NON-CURRENT RESTRICTED TREASURY SECURITIES    86,304   —   
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, NET    1,150,953   748,818 
DEBT ISSUANCE COSTS, NET    46,875   41,545 
INVESTMENTS IN UNCONSOLIDATED AFFILIATES    25,266   —   
GOODWILL    76,844   76,844 
INTANGIBLE ASSETS    4,448   4,331 
ADVANCES UNDER LONG-TERM CONTRACTS    18,917   7,101 
OTHER    1,882   4,154 

  

TOTAL ASSETS   $ 3,084,424  $ 2,604,488 
  

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ (DEFICIT) EQUITY    
CURRENT LIABILITIES    

Accounts payable   $ 10,029  $ 3,659 
Accrued liabilities    90,973   58,280 
Derivative liabilities    995   —   

  

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES    101,997   61,939 
LONG-TERM DEBT    2,757,000   2,357,000 
DEFERRED REVENUE    41,000   41,000 
OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES    6,874   1,302 
MINORITY INTEREST    300,795   —   
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES    —     —   
STOCKHOLDERS’ (DEFICIT) EQUITY    

Preferred stock, $0.001 par value, 5,000,000 shares authorized, none issued    —     —   
Common stock, $0.003 par value    
Authorized: 120,000,000 shares at both June 30, 2007 and December 31, 2006    
Issued and outstanding: 50,427,267 shares at June 30, 2007 and 55,212,771 shares at December 31, 2006 (excluding treasury

shares)    169   166 
Treasury stock, 6,000,962 shares, at cost    (212,520)  —   

Additional paid-in-capital    411,992   390,256 
Accumulated deficit    (322,816)  (247,141)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss    (67)  (34)

  

Total stockholders’ (deficit) equity    (123,242)  143,247 
  

Total liabilities and stockholders’ (deficit) equity   $ 3,084,424  $ 2,604,488 
  

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CHENIERE ENERGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(in thousands, except per share data)
(unaudited)

 

   
Three Months Ended

June 30,   
Six Months Ended

June 30,  
   2007   2006   2007   2006  
Revenues      

Oil and gas sales   $ 2,719  $ 413  $ 3,551  $ 835 
Marketing and trading loss    (1,847)  —     (3,936)  —   

  

Total revenues    872   413   (385)  835 
  

Operating costs and expenses      
LNG receiving terminal and pipeline development expenses    10,532   (4,506)  16,286   3,807 
Exploration costs    14   590   372   1,428 
Oil and gas production costs    101   55   168   105 
Depreciation, depletion and amortization    1,513   579   2,589   1,185 
General and administrative expenses    28,936   12,444   50,197   25,625 

  

Total operating costs and expenses    41,096   9,162   69,612   32,150 
  

Loss from operations    (40,224)  (8,749)  (69,997)  (31,315)
Derivative gain    —     162   —     923 
Interest expense, net    (25,930)  (11,096)  (52,356)  (22,234)
Interest income    24,120   10,335   45,703   19,879 
Other income (expense)    (184)  108   (183)  284 

  

Loss before income taxes and minority interest    (42,218)  (9,240)  (76,833)  (32,463)
Income tax benefit    —     5,621   —     13,033 

  

Loss before minority interest    (42,218)  (3,619)  (76,833)  (19,430)
Minority interest    1,099   —     1,158   —   

  

Net loss   $ (41,119) $ (3,619) $ (75,675) $ (19,430)
  

Net loss per common share—basic and diluted   $ (0.76) $ (0.07) $ (1.38) $ (0.36)
  

Weighted average number of common shares outstanding—basic and diluted    54,391   54,369   54,640   54,293 
  

 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CHENIERE ENERGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF STOCKHOLDERS’ (DEFICIT) EQUITY

(in thousands)
(unaudited)

 
  Common Stock  Treasury Stock   

Additional
Paid-In
Capital  

 

Accumulated
Deficit  

 Accumulated
Other Comprehensive

Income
(loss)  

 Total
Stockholders’

(Deficit)
Equity    Shares   Amount Shares  Amount      

Balance—December 31, 2006  55,213  $ 166 —    $ —    $ 390,256  $ (247,141) $ (34) $ 143,247 
Issuances of stock  414   1 —     —     1,746   —     —     1,747 
Issuances of restricted stock  807   2 —     —     (2)  —     —     —   
Forfeitures of restricted stock  (5)    —   1   —     —     —     —     —   
Stock-based compensation  —     —   —     —        20,054   —     —     20,054 
Treasury stock acquired  (6,002)  —   6,002   (212,582)  —     —     —     (212,582)
Treasury stock retired  —     —   (2)  62   (62)  —     —     —   
Other Comprehensive loss:         

Foreign currency translation  —     —   —     —     —     —     (33)  (33)
Net loss  —     —   —     —     —     (75,675)  —     (75,675)

Balance—June 30, 2007  50,427  $ 169 6,001  $ (212,520) $ 411,992  $ (322,816) $ (67) $ (123,242)

 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CHENIERE ENERGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(in thousands)
(unaudited)

 

   
Six Months Ended

June 30,  
   2007   2006  
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:    

Net loss   $ (75,675) $ (19,430)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities:    

Depreciation, depletion and amortization    2,571   1,185 
Impairment of unproved properties    335   323 
Dry hole expense    (2)  540 
Amortization of debt issuance costs    2,722   1,835 
Non-cash compensation    19,321   10,896 
Use of restricted cash and cash equivalents    56,610   —   
Restricted interest income on restricted cash and cash equivalents    (29,719)  —   
Deferred tax benefit    —     (13,033)
Equity in net loss of limited partnership    —     —   
Minority interest    (1,158)  —   
Non-cash derivative (gain) loss    —     (580)
Other    (129)  (10)

Changes in operating assets and liabilities    
Accounts receivable    (11,585)  (644)
Interest receivable    (1,191)  —   
Prepaid expenses    (6,700)  (2,770)
Deferred rent    4,448   —   
Regulatory assets    —     (12,343)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities    16,308   (1,114)

  

NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES    (23,844)  (35,145)
  

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:    
LNG terminal and pipeline construction-in-progress    (360,400)  (160,475)
Use of restricted cash and cash equivalents    300,314   26,782 
Investments in restricted treasury securities    (98,442)  —   
Purchases of fixed assets    (15,926)  (4,050)
Investment in unconsolidated affiliate    (25,025)  —   
Oil and gas additions, net of sales    23   (2,576)
Advances under long-term contracts    (11,816)  —   
Other    78   (3,052)

  

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES    (211,194)  (143,371)
  

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:    
Proceeds from issuances of common units in partnership    203,946   —   
Proceeds from issuance of common units to minority owners in partnership    98,442   —   
Distributions to minority interest    (435)  —   
Proceeds from 2007 Term Loan    400,000   —   
Payment of Holdings term loan    —     (3,000)
Borrowings under Sabine Pass credit facility    —     149,000 
Debt issuance costs    (8,883)  (3,252)
Sale of common stock    1,748   1,716 
Purchase of treasury shares    (212,582)  (932)
Use of restricted cash and cash equivalents    641   —   

  

NET CASH PROVIDED BY FINANCING ACTIVITIES    482,877   143,532 
  

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS    247,839   (34,984)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS—BEGINNING OF PERIOD    462,963   692,592 

  

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS—END OF PERIOD   $ 710,802  $ 657,608 
  

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CHENIERE ENERGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
 NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(unaudited)

NOTE 1—Basis of Presentation
The accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements of Cheniere Energy, Inc. have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles

in the United States (“GAAP”) for interim financial information and with the instructions to Form 10-Q and Rule 10-01 of Regulation S-X. Accordingly, they do not include all
of the information and footnotes required by GAAP for complete financial statements. In our opinion, all adjustments, consisting only of normal recurring adjustments
necessary for a fair presentation, have been included. As used herein, the terms “Cheniere,” “we,” “our” and “us” refer to Cheniere Energy, Inc. and its wholly-owned or
controlled subsidiaries, unless otherwise stated or indicated by context.

Certain reclassifications have been made to conform prior period information to the current presentation, including a $179.0 million reclassification between current
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents and Non-Current Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents on our December 31, 2006 Consolidated Balance Sheet. The reclassification had
no effect on our overall consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows. Interim results are not necessarily indicative of results to be expected for the full
fiscal year ending December 31, 2007.

For further information, refer to the consolidated financial statements and footnotes included in our annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2006.

NOTE 2—Initial Public Offering of Cheniere Energy Partners, L.P. and Minority Interest
On March 26, 2007, Cheniere Energy Partners, L.P. (“Cheniere Partners”) and Cheniere LNG Holdings, LLC (“Holdings”), our wholly-owned subsidiary, completed a

public offering of 13,500,000 Cheniere Partners common units (the “Offering”). Cheniere Partners is a Delaware limited partnership formed by us to develop, own and operate
the Sabine Pass liquefied natural gas (“LNG”) receiving terminal. Upon the closing of the Offering, the following transactions occurred:
 

 •  Holdings contributed its ownership interests in the entities that directly or indirectly own the Sabine Pass LNG receiving terminal to Cheniere Energy
Investments, LLC, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Cheniere Partners;

 

 •  Cheniere Partners issued 21,362,193 common units, 135,383,831 subordinated units, 3,302,045 general partner units (representing a 2% general partner interest)
and certain general partner incentive distribution rights to wholly-owned subsidiaries of Cheniere;

 

 •  Cheniere Partners issued 5,054,164 common units to the public and received net proceeds of $98.4 million; and
 

 
•  Holdings initially sold 8,445,836 common units to the public and received net proceeds of $164.5 million, after which Cheniere and the public owned 89.8% and

8.2% limited partner interests in Cheniere Partners, respectively. Holdings also granted the underwriters an option to purchase an additional 2,025,000 of its
Cheniere Partners’ common units to cover over-allotments in connection with the Offering.

Cheniere Partners used all of the net proceeds of $98.4 million it received from the sale of its common units to purchase U.S. treasury securities to fund a distribution
reserve for payment of initial quarterly distributions of $0.425 per common unit, as well as related quarterly distributions to its general partner through the quarterly distribution
to be made in respect of the quarter ending June 30, 2009.
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CHENIERE ENERGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

(unaudited)
 

On April 16, 2007, the underwriters of the Offering exercised their over-allotment option to purchase 2,025,000 additional common units, which resulted in net proceeds
of approximately $39.4 million to Holdings as the selling unitholder.

The net proceeds of $164.5 million from the initial sale of the common units by Holdings and the net proceeds of $39.4 million that it received from the subsequent
exercise of the underwriters’ option to purchase additional common units from Holdings are not assets of Cheniere Partners, and therefore are unrestricted as to our use and are
available for corporate and general purposes.

As of June 30, 2007, our combined general partner and limited partner ownership interest in Cheniere Partners was approximately 90.6%. As of such date, we held
135,383,831 subordinated units, 10,891,357 common units and 3,302,045 general partner units of Cheniere Partners. During the subordination period, the subordinated units
will not be entitled to receive any distributions until the common units have received the initial quarterly distribution plus any arrearages on the initial quarterly distribution
from prior quarters. Our subordinated units do not accrue arrearages. The subordination period generally will end if:
 

 •  Cheniere Partners has earned and paid at least $0.425 on each outstanding common unit, subordinated unit and general partner unit for each of the three
consecutive, non-overlapping four-quarter periods ending on or after June 30, 2010; or

 

 •  Cheniere Partners has earned and paid at least $0.638 (150% of the initial quarterly distribution) on each outstanding common unit, subordinated unit and general
partner unit for any four consecutive quarters ending on or after June 30, 2008.

The portion of the common units held by the public is presented as a minority interest on our Consolidated Balance Sheets. Losses attributable to the minority interest are
presented separately on our Consolidated Statements of Operations based upon the minority interest’s share of Cheniere Partners’ losses calculated in accordance with Cheniere
Partners’ partnership agreement.

The following table sets forth the components of our minority interest balance attributable to third-party investors’ interest in Cheniere Partners as a result of the Offering
(in thousands):
 

Net proceeds from Cheniere Partners’ issuance of common units (1)   $ 98,442 
Net proceeds from Holdings’ sale of Cheniere Partners common units (2)    203,946 
Distributions to minority interest    (435)
Minority interest share of loss of Cheniere Partners    (1,158)

  

Minority interest at June 30, 2007   $ 300,795 
  

(1) Through the Offering, Cheniere Partners received $98.4 million in proceeds net of offering costs from the issuance of its common units to the public. Securities and
Exchange Commission (“SEC”) Staff Accounting Bulletin (“SAB”) No. 51, Accounting for Sales of Stock by a Subsidiary, provides guidance on accounting by the parent
for issuances of a subsidiary’s common equity to unaffiliated parties. Under SAB No. 51, a company may elect an accounting policy of recording a gain or loss on the sale
of common equity of a subsidiary equal to the amount of proceeds received in excess of the carrying value of the parent’s investment. Upon the conversion of all of our
subordinated units in Cheniere Partners to common units, we will evaluate whether to recognize a gain through earnings at that time.

(2) In conjunction with the Offering, Holdings sold a portion of the Cheniere Partners common units held by it to public, realizing proceeds net of offering costs of $203.9
million, which included $39.4 million of net
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CHENIERE ENERGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

(unaudited)
 

 
proceeds realized once the underwriters exercised their option to purchase an additional 2,025,000 common units from Holdings. Due to the subordinated distribution
rights on our subordinated units, we have recorded those proceeds as a minority interest. Upon the conversion of all of our subordinated units in Cheniere Partners to
common units, we will evaluate whether to recognize a gain through earnings at that time.

NOTE 3—Treasury Stock
During the quarter ended June 30, 2007, we purchased 6.0 million shares of our common stock through the exercise of call options acquired in the issuer call spread

purchased by us in connection with the issuance of the Convertible Senior Unsecured Notes (see Note 8—Long Term Debt). These shares were held as treasury stock at
June 30, 2007. In addition, for the six months ended June 30, 2007, we acquired 7,802 shares of treasury stock as a result of forfeitures and surrenders of restricted stock. Of
these shares, 6,840 have been cancelled. Treasury stock is accounted for under the cost method.

NOTE 4—Restricted Cash, Cash Equivalents and Treasury Securities
In August 2006, Cheniere Creole Trail Pipeline, L.P. (“CCTP”), our wholly-owned subsidiary, entered into a purchase order with ILVA S.p.A (“ILVA”) for the purchase

of pipe at an aggregate cost of approximately $175.7 million. Associated with this purchase order, CCTP delivered a standby letter of credit to ILVA in the amount of $87.9
million to secure CCTP’s obligations under the purchase order. This letter of credit required a deposit of $87.9 million with the issuer of the letter of credit, which was recorded
as Non-Current Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents on our Consolidated Balance Sheet at December 31, 2006. Once payments by CCTP under the purchase order exceed the
value of the letter of credit, ILVA will submit a notice of reduction to the issuing bank to reduce the amount of the letter of credit by 100% of any subsequent payments by
CCTP. The Non-Current Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents cash collateral account on deposit with the issuing bank will be reduced by such amount. In January 2007,
CCTP amended the ILVA purchase order to terminate for convenience 610,560 of the 952,700 feet of pipe originally required under the purchase order. The cancellation fee of
$0.5 million under the terms of the original purchase order was waived. The amendment called for a decrease to the face amount of the purchase order and the related letter of
credit and cash collateral deposit from $87.9 million to $4.1 million. As a result of the amendment, we were able to release the restriction on the cash associated with the
reduction of the purchase order.

In November 2006, Sabine Pass LNG, L.P. (“Sabine Pass LNG”), our subsidiary now wholly-owned by Cheniere Partners, consummated a private offering of an
aggregate principal amount of $2,032 million of Senior Secured Notes consisting of $550 million of 7 1/4% Senior Secured Notes due 2013 (the “2013 Notes”) and $1,482
million of 7 1/2% Senior Secured Notes due 2016 (the “2016 Notes” and collectively with the 2013 Notes, the “Sabine Pass LNG notes”) (see Note 8—Long-Term Debt). Under
the terms and conditions of the Sabine Pass LNG notes, we were required to fund cash reserve accounts for approximately $335 million related to future interest payments
through May 2009 and approximately $887 million to pay the remaining costs to complete the initial phase (“Phase 1”) and the first stage of the second phase (“Phase 2—Stage
1”) of the Sabine Pass LNG receiving terminal. These cash accounts are controlled by a collateral trustee, and therefore are shown as Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents on
our Consolidated Balance Sheets. As of June 30, 2007 and December 31, 2006, $179.9 million and $176.3 million, respectively, of cash restricted for future interest payments
due within one year and accrued construction costs have been classified as a current asset, and $720.6 million and $982.6 million, respectively, of cash restricted for remaining
construction costs and future interest payments due beyond one year have been classified as a non-current asset on our Consolidated Balance Sheets.
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CHENIERE ENERGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

(unaudited)
 

As discussed above in Note 2, at the closing of the Offering, Cheniere Partners funded a distribution reserve of $98.4 million, which was invested in U.S. treasury
securities. The distribution reserve, including interest earned thereon, will be used to pay quarterly distributions of $0.425 per common unit for all common units, as well as
related distributions to Cheniere Partners’ general partner through the distribution made in respect of the quarter ending June 30, 2009. The U.S. treasury securities were
acquired at a discount from their maturity values equal to an average of approximately 4.87% per year. As of June 30, 2007, we classified $86.3 million of the U.S. treasury
securities as Non-Current Restricted Treasury Securities on our Consolidated Balance Sheet, as these securities had maturities greater than three months. In May 2007, we used
the distribution reserve to pay a cash distribution based on the pro rata share of the partnership’s minimum quarterly distribution for the time period from the closing of the
Offering on March 26, 2007 through March 31, 2007. The remaining $11.5 million invested in U.S. treasury securities were classified as Non-Current Restricted Cash and Cash
Equivalents on our Consolidated Balance Sheets as of June 30, 2007, as these securities had maturities less than or equal to three months.

NOTE 5—Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment consists of LNG terminal and natural gas pipeline construction-in-progress expenditures, LNG site and related costs, investments in oil

and gas properties and fixed assets, as follows (in thousands):
 

   
June 30,

2007   
December 31,

2006  
LNG TERMINAL COSTS    

LNG terminal construction-in-progress   $ 913,538  $ 684,008 
LNG site and related costs, net    1,481   1,467 

  

Total LNG terminal costs    915,019   685,475 
  

NATURAL GAS PIPELINE COSTS    
Pipeline construction-in-progress    197,647   45,615 
Pipeline right-of-ways    9,876   2,134 

  

Total natural gas pipeline costs    207,523   47,749 
  

OIL AND GAS PROPERTIES, successful efforts    
Proved    2,360   2,343 
Unproved    405   779 
Accumulated depreciation, depletion and amortization    (440)  (263)

  

Total oil and gas properties, net    2,325   2,859 
  

FIXED ASSETS    
Computers and office equipment    7,133   5,352 
Furniture and fixtures    4,743   1,310 
Computer software    10,317   8,043 
Leasehold improvements    7,506   2,206 
Projects in progress    1,532   1,724 
Other    560   123 
Accumulated depreciation    (5,705)  (6,023)

  

Total fixed assets, net    26,086   12,735 
  

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, NET   $ 1,150,953  $ 748,818 
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CHENIERE ENERGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

(unaudited)
 

LNG Terminal Costs
Once an LNG receiving terminal is placed into service, the related LNG terminal construction-in-progress costs will be depreciated using the straight-line depreciation

method. We are in the process of determining the appropriate approach for grouping identifiable components with similar estimated useful lives. Estimated useful lives for
components, once construction is completed, are currently estimated to range between 10 and 50 years.

In February 2005 and July 2006, Phase 1 and Phase 2—Stage l, respectively, of the Sabine Pass LNG receiving terminal project satisfied our criteria for capitalization.
Accordingly, costs associated with the construction of Phase 1 and Phase 2—Stage 1 of the Sabine Pass LNG receiving terminal have been capitalized as construction-in-
progress since those dates. For the six months ended June 30, 2007 and 2006, we capitalized $27.9 million and $7.7 million of interest expense related to these construction
projects, respectively. In March 2006, our Corpus Christi LNG receiving terminal satisfied the criteria for capitalization. Accordingly, costs associated with the initial site work
for the Corpus Christi LNG receiving terminal have been capitalized as construction-in progress since that time. For the six months ended June 30, 2007, we capitalized $1.0
million of interest expense related to this construction project.

Natural Gas Pipeline Costs
Our developing natural gas pipeline business is subject to the jurisdiction of the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (“FERC”) in accordance with the Natural Gas

Act of 1938 and the Natural Gas Policy Act of 1978, and we have determined that our pipelines to be constructed have met the criteria set forth in SFAS No. 71, Accounting for
the Effects of Certain Types of Regulations. Accordingly, we began applying the provisions of SFAS No. 71 to the affected pipeline subsidiaries in the second quarter of 2006.
Natural gas pipeline costs also include amounts capitalized as Allowance for Funds Used During Construction (“AFUDC”). The rates used in the calculation of AFUDC are
determined in accordance with guidelines established by the FERC. AFUDC represents the cost of debt and equity funds used to finance our natural gas pipeline additions
during construction. AFUDC is capitalized as a part of the cost of our natural gas pipelines. Under regulatory rate practices, we generally are permitted to recover AFUDC, and
a fair return thereon, through our rate base after our natural gas pipelines are placed in service. For the six months ended June 30, 2007, we capitalized $4.0 million of AFUDC
to our natural gas pipeline projects.

Fixed Assets
Our fixed assets are recorded at cost and are depreciated on a straight-line method based on estimated lives of the individual assets or groups of assets. Depreciation

expense related to our property, plant and equipment totaled $2.4 million for the six months ended June 30, 2007.

NOTE 6—Investments in Unconsolidated Affiliates
Freeport LNG

We account for our 30% limited partner investment in Freeport LNG Development, L.P. (“Freeport LNG”) using the equity method of accounting. As of June 30, 2007
and December 31, 2006, we had unrecorded cumulative suspended losses of $16.4 million and $13.0 million, respectively, related to our investment in Freeport LNG, as the
basis in this investment had been reduced to zero. As a result, we did not record our share of the losses of the partnership for the three and six months ended June 30, 2007
because we had not guaranteed any obligations and are not committed to provide any further financial support, and have not done so since December 2005.
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CHENIERE ENERGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

(unaudited)
 

The financial position of Freeport LNG at June 30, 2007 and December 31, 2006 and the results of Freeport LNG’s operations for the three and six months ended
June 30, 2007 and 2006 are summarized as follows (in thousands):
 

   
June 30,

2007   
December 31,

2006  
Current assets   $ 218,551  $ 294,847 
Construction-in-progress    739,298   594,191 
Fixed assets, net, and other assets    9,666   9,684 

  

Total assets   $ 967,515  $ 898,722 
  

Current liabilities   $ 32,407  $ 38,621 
Notes payable    989,781   903,369 
Deferred revenue and other deferred credits    5,462   5,666 
Partners’ capital    (60,135)  (48,934)

  

Total liabilities and partners’ capital   $ 967,515  $ 898,722 
  

 

   
Three Months Ended

June 30,   
Six Months Ended

June 30,  
   2007   2006   2007   2006  
Loss from continuing operations   $(5,540) $(7,810) $(11,201) $(18,395)
Net loss    (5,540)  (7,810)  (11,201)  (18,395)
Cheniere’s 30% equity in net loss from limited partnership(1)    (1,662)  (2,343)  (3,360)  (5,519)

(1) As discussed above, our equity in the net losses of Freeport LNG for the three- and six-month periods ending June 30, 2007 and 2006, were suspended and included in our
unrecorded cumulative suspended losses because our investment basis was zero.

J & S Cheniere
J & S Cheniere S.A. (“J & S Cheniere”), a Swiss corporation, was formed on December 23, 2003 to engage in LNG transportation and trading activities. On May 8, 2007,

an Amended and Restated Shareholders Agreement (“J & S Cheniere Amended Agreement”) was executed for J & S Cheniere, by and between an indirect, wholly-owned
subsidiary of Cheniere and Mercuria Energy Holding B.V. (“Mercuria”), a Netherlands corporation affiliated with Mercuria Energy Group Ltd., an international petroleum
trading and marketing company. In connection with the execution of the J & S Cheniere Amended Agreement, we have increased our ownership in J & S Cheniere to 49%.
Mercuria has the remaining 51% ownership interest. Each shareholder has the right to appoint half of the board of directors of J & S Cheniere.

Pursuant to the terms of the J & S Cheniere Amended Agreement, Cheniere and Mercuria have each loaned $25 million to J & S Cheniere for the purpose of
collateralizing certain obligations of J & S Cheniere relating to two LNG tanker time charters. Mercuria also agreed to the cancellation of prior loans made by it to
J & S Cheniere. Under the J & S Cheniere Amended Agreement, Mercuria is entitled to receive from J & S Cheniere the first $15.9 million of distributions, after which we will
be entitled to the next $10 million of distributions. Thereafter, distributions will be made pro rata in accordance with the number of shares owned by each shareholder.
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Prior to executing the J & S Cheniere Amended Agreement, we accounted for our investment in J & S Cheniere under the cost method of accounting. In connection with
the execution of the J & S Cheniere Amended Agreement and the increase of our ownership interest to 49%, on May 8, 2007, we began accounting for our investment in J & S
Cheniere under the equity method of accounting, which was applied on a retroactive basis and had no material effect on our overall consolidated financial position, results of
operations or cash flows.

NOTE 7—Accrued Liabilities
As of June 30, 2007 and December 31, 2006, accrued liabilities consisted of the following (in thousands):

 

   
June 30,

2007   
December 31,

2006

LNG terminal construction costs   $28,259  $ 16,334
Accrued interest expense and related fees    19,364   24,861
Pipeline construction costs    22,403   7,039
Purchased physical gas    10,181   —  
Payroll    6,542   5,512
Other accrued liabilities    4,224   4,534

    

Accrued liabilities   $90,973  $ 58,280
    

NOTE 8—Long-Term Debt
As of June 30, 2007 and December 31, 2006, our long-term debt consisted of the following (in thousands):

 

   
June 30,

2007   
December 31,

2006

Sabine Pass LNG notes   $ 2,032,000  $ 2,032,000
2007 Term Loan    400,000   —  
Convertible Senior Unsecured Notes    325,000   325,000

    

Total Long-Term Debt   $ 2,757,000  $ 2,357,000
    

Sabine Pass LNG Notes
In November 2006, Sabine Pass LNG consummated a private offering of an aggregate principal amount of $2,032 million of Sabine Pass LNG notes, consisting of $550

million of the 2013 Notes and $1,482 million of the 2016 Notes.

Interest on the Sabine Pass LNG notes is payable semi-annually in arrears on May 30 and November 30 of each year, beginning May 30, 2007. The Sabine Pass LNG
notes are secured on a first-priority basis by a security interest in all of Sabine Pass LNG’s equity interests and substantially all of its operating assets.

Under the indenture governing the Sabine Pass LNG notes, except for permitted tax distributions, Sabine Pass LNG may not make distributions until certain conditions
are satisfied. The indenture requires that Sabine Pass LNG apply its net operating cash flow (i) first, to fund with monthly deposits its next semiannual payment of
approximately $75.5 million of interest on the Sabine Pass LNG notes, and (ii) second, to fund a one-time, permanent debt service reserve fund equal to one semiannual interest
payment of approximately $75.5 million on
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the Sabine Pass LNG notes. Distributions from Sabine Pass LNG will be permitted only after Phase 1 target completion, as defined in the indenture governing the Sabine Pass
LNG notes, or such earlier date as project revenues are received, upon satisfaction of the foregoing funding requirements, after satisfying a fixed charge coverage ratio test of
2:1 and after satisfying other conditions specified in the indenture.

Convertible Senior Unsecured Notes
In July 2005, we consummated a private offering of $325 million aggregate principal amount of Convertible Senior Unsecured Notes due 2012 to qualified institutional

buyers pursuant to Rule 144A under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (“Securities Act”). The notes bear interest at a rate of 2.25% per year. The notes are convertible at
any time into our common stock under certain circumstances at an initial conversion rate of 28.2326 shares per $1,000 principal amount of the notes, which is equal to a
conversion price of approximately $35.42 per share. We may redeem some or all of the notes on or before August 1, 2012, for cash equal to 100% of the principal plus any
accrued and unpaid interest if in the previous 10 trading days the volume-weighted average price of our common stock exceeds $53.13, subject to adjustment, for at least five
consecutive trading days. In the event of such a redemption, we will make an additional payment equal to the present value of all remaining scheduled interest payments through
August 1, 2012, discounted at the U.S. Treasury rate plus 50 basis points. The indenture governing the notes contains customary reporting requirements.

Concurrently with the issuance of the Convertible Senior Unsecured Notes, we also entered into hedge transactions in the form of an issuer call spread (consisting of a
purchase and a sale of call options on our common stock) with an affiliate of the initial purchaser of the notes, having a term of two years and a net cost to us of $75.7 million.
These hedge transactions we entered into are expected to offset potential dilution from conversion of the notes. The net cost of the hedge transactions was recorded as a
reduction to Additional Paid-in-Capital in accordance with the guidance of Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”) Issue 00-19, Accounting for Derivative Financial Instruments
Indexed to, and Potentially Settled in, a Company’s Own Stock. Net proceeds from the offering were $239.8 million, after deducting the cost of the hedge transactions, the
underwriting discount and related fees. As of June 30, 2007, no holders had elected to convert their notes.

As of June 30, 2007, we had repurchased 6.0 million shares of our common stock through the exercise of the call options acquired in the issuer call spread purchased by
us in connection with the issuance of the Convertible Senior Unsecured Notes at a cash price of $35.42 per share, for an aggregate purchase price of approximately $212.5
million.

2007 Term Loan
On May 31, 2007, Cheniere Subsidiary Holdings, LLC (“Cheniere Subsidiary”), a newly formed wholly-owned subsidiary of Cheniere, entered into a $400.0 million

credit agreement (“2007 Term Loan”). Borrowings under the 2007 Term Loan generally bear interest at a fixed rate of 9.75% per annum. Interest is calculated on the unpaid
principal amount of the 2007 Term Loan outstanding and is payable quarterly in arrears on March 31, June 30, September 30 and December 31 of each year, beginning June 30,
2007. The 2007 Term Loan will mature on May 31, 2012. The net proceeds of $391.7 million from the 2007 Term Loan are being used for general corporate purposes, including
to repurchase approximately 9.2 million shares of our outstanding common stock (of which 6.0 million had been purchased at June 30, 2007) pursuant to the exercise of the call
options acquired in the issuer call spread purchased by us in connection with the issuance of the Convertible Senior Unsecured Notes.
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NOTE 9—Financial Instruments

The estimated fair value of financial instruments is the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged currently between willing parties. The carrying amounts
reported in the Consolidated Balance Sheets for Cash and Cash Equivalents, Accounts Receivable and Accounts Payable approximate fair value due to their short-term nature.
We use available market data and valuation methodologies to estimate the fair value of debt. This disclosure is presented in accordance with SFAS No. 107, Disclosures about
Fair Value of Financial Instruments, and does not impact our financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

Financial Instruments (in thousands):
 
   June 30, 2007   December 31, 2006

   
Carrying
Amount   

Estimated
Fair Value   

Carrying
Amount   

Estimated
Fair Value

2013 Notes (1)   $ 550,000  $ 541,750  $ 550,000  $ 547,250
2016 Notes (1)    1,482,000   1,459,770   1,482,000   1,478,295
2007 Term Loan (2)    400,000   400,000   —     —  
2.25% Convertible Senior Unsecured Notes due 2012 (3)    325,000   400,156   325,000   334,750
Restricted Treasury Securities (4)    86,304   87,131   —     —  

(1) The fair value of the Sabine Pass LNG notes is based on quotations obtained from broker-dealers who made markets in these and similar instruments as of June 29, 2007
and December 29, 2006.

(2) The 2007 Term Loan bears interest at a fixed rate; therefore, the estimated fair value is expected to vary with changes in market interest rates. At June 30, 2007, the interest
rate on the loan was estimated to be at market, and accordingly, the estimated fair value of the loan equals the carrying amount.

(3) The fair value of our Convertible Senior Unsecured Notes is based on a closing trading price on June 29, 2007 and December 29, 2006.
(4) The fair value of our Restricted Treasury Securities is based on quotations obtained from broker-dealers who made markets in these and similar instruments as of June 29,

2007. This amount includes $11.5 million classified as Non-Current Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents on our Consolidated Balance Sheet as of June 30, 2007, as these
securities had maturities less than or equal to three months.

NOTE 10—Income Taxes
From our inception, we have reported net operating losses (“NOL”) for both financial reporting purposes and for international, federal and state income tax reporting

purposes. Accordingly, we are not presently a taxpayer and have not recorded a net liability for international, federal or state income taxes in any of the periods included in the
accompanying financial statements. Our Consolidated Statements of Operations for the six months ended June 30, 2007 and 2006 included deferred income tax benefits of zero
and $13.0 million, respectively. The deferred income tax benefit recorded for the six months ended June 30, 2006 was provided in accordance with the guidance in paragraph
140 of SFAS No. 109 and EITF Abstract, Topic D-32, which, in certain circumstances, requires items reported in pre-tax accumulated other comprehensive income (“OCI”) to
be considered in the determination of the amount of tax benefit that must be reported in the Consolidated Statement of Operations when an NOL occurs. In our situation, one of
those specific circumstance existed, which related to a pre-tax accumulated OCI of $43.1 million recorded as of June 30, 2006 in connection with our interest rate swaps. The
deferred tax benefit for the six months ended June 30, 2006 represents the portion of the change in our tax asset valuation account that was allocable to the deferred income tax
on the pre-tax income items reported in accumulated OCI in our June 30, 2006 Consolidated Statement of Stockholders’ Equity.
 

13



Index to Financial Statements

CHENIERE ENERGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

(unaudited)
 

The income tax benefit included in our reported net loss consisted of the following (in thousands):
 

   
Three Months Ended

June 30,   
Six Months Ended

June 30,
   2007   2006   2007   2006
Current income tax expense   $ —    $ —    $—    $ —  
Deferred income tax benefit    —     5,621   —     13,033

        

  $ —    $ 5,621  $—    $ 13,033
        

We believe a substantial portion of the Sabine Pass LNG receiving terminal qualifies for the 50% bonus depreciation allowance enacted by the Gulf Opportunity Zone
Act of 2005. These accelerated deductions are based on a full year estimate of the Sabine Pass LNG receiving terminal qualifying additions that will be ready to be placed in
service during the remainder of 2007. The accelerated tax depreciation deduction offset a substantial portion of a first quarter tax gain resulting from the Offering.

New Accounting Pronouncement
In July 2006, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation (“FIN”) No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes—An Interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109. FIN

No. 48 clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in an enterprise’s financial statements in accordance with SFAS No. 109, Accounting for Income
Taxes. It prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement attribute for the financial statement recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in
a tax return. This new standard also provides guidance on derecognition, classification, interest and penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclosure and transition rules.

Our federal consolidated income tax returns have not been audited by the Internal Revenue Service; we have not been notified of any pending federal, state or
international income tax audits. We have not entered into any agreements with any taxing authorities to extend the period of time in which they may assert or assess additional
income tax, penalties or interest. However, because we are presently in an NOL carryover position and have been since our inception, under the applicable Internal Revenue
Service guidelines, in the event of an audit, our available federal NOL carryover amount is subject to adjustment until the normal three-year federal statute of limitations closes
for the year in which the NOL is fully utilized. The Texas Comptroller’s office recently completed an audit of Cheniere’s Texas franchise tax returns for the three-year period
ended December 31, 2004; the Louisiana Department of Revenue recently completed an income and franchise tax audit of Cheniere and one of our wholly-owned affiliates for
the two-year period ended December 31, 2003. We expect that all of our significant operating affiliates will be audited by the States of Texas and Louisiana for annual tax
reporting periods ended on and after December 31, 2004. To date, all of the state-level income tax audits have been settled favorably and without changes. None of our foreign
affiliates have been audited by any foreign taxing authorities and none have been notified by relevant taxing authorities of an impending audit.

As discussed above, we have not previously recorded a liability for international, federal or state income taxes, and therefore, we have not been subject to any penalties
or interest expense related to any income tax liabilities. In future reporting periods, if any interest or penalties are imposed in connection with an income tax liability, we expect
to include both of these items in our income tax provision.
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The provisions of FIN No. 48 have been applied to all of our material tax positions taken through the date of adoption and during the interim quarterly period ended
June 30, 2007. We have determined that all of our material tax positions taken in our income tax returns meet, and the positions we expect to take in our future income tax
filings will meet, the more likely-than-not recognition threshold prescribed by FIN No. 48. We have $36.9 million of tax positions related to the accelerated recovery of certain
capital costs for which the ultimate deductibility is highly certain, but for which there is some uncertainty related to the timing of the related current and future tax deductions.
Under SFAS No. 109, the disallowance of an accelerated recovery period would not affect our annual reported effective tax rate but would most likely result in the acceleration
of cash income tax payments to the relevant taxing authorities. Adjustments that would affect our current year taxable income would generally be offset by our available NOL
carryovers, and therefore, no interest and penalties have been accrued with respect to this liability. We believe that it is reasonably possible that the amount of our unrecognized
tax benefits will decrease significantly within the next twelve months, but the amount of the decrease cannot be reasonably estimated at this time. To date, the adoption of FIN
No. 48 has had no impact on our financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

As set forth in SFAS No. 109, we have established a tax valuation allowance for the tax benefits related to our NOL carryover and our other deferred tax assets due to the
uncertainty of realizing the tax benefits. If, as a result of a change in facts, any of our previously recognized tax benefits are required to be de-recognized in a future reporting
period, the resulting decrease in tax benefits will be taken into account before the amount of our tax valuation allowance is adjusted.

NOTE 11—Net Income (Loss) Per Share
Basic net income (loss) per share is computed by dividing the net income (loss) by the weighted average number of shares of common stock outstanding for the period.

The computation of diluted net income (loss) per share reflects the potential dilution that could occur if securities or other contracts to issue common stock that are dilutive to
net income were exercised or converted into common stock or resulted in the issuance of common stock that would then share in our earnings.

The following table reconciles basic and diluted weighted average common shares outstanding for the three and six months ended June 30, 2007 and 2006 (in thousands
except for loss per share):
 

   
Three Months Ended

June 30,   
Six Months Ended

June 30,  
   2007   2006   2007   2006  
Weighted average common shares outstanding:      

Basic    54,391   54,369   54,640   54,293 
Dilutive common stock options    —     —     —     —   
Dilutive Convertible Senior Unsecured Notes    —     —     —     —   

  

Diluted    54,391   54,369   54,640   54,293 
  

Basic loss per share   $ (0.76) $ (0.07) $ (1.38) $ (0.36)
Diluted loss per share   $ (0.76) $ (0.07) $ (1.38) $ (0.36)
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NOTE 12—Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)

The following table is a reconciliation of our net loss to our comprehensive income (loss) for the three and six months ended June 30, 2007 and 2006 (in thousands):
 

   
Three Months Ended

June 30,   
Six Months Ended

June 30,  
   2007   2006   2007   2006  
Net loss   $(41,119) $ (3,619) $(75,675) $(19,430)
Other comprehensive income (loss) items:      

Cash flow hedges, net of income tax    —     10,437   —     24,205 
Foreign currency translation    (28)  (34)  (33)  (34)

  

Comprehensive income (loss)   $(41,147) $ 6,784  $(75,708) $ 4,741 
  

NOTE 13—Related Party Transactions
From time to time, officers and employees may charter aircraft for company business travel. We entered into a letter agreement, or charter letter, with an unrelated third-

party entity, Western Airways, Inc. (“Western”), that specified the terms under which it would provide for charter of a Challenger 600 aircraft. One of the Challenger 600
aircraft that could be provided by Western for such services was owned by Bramblebush, L.L.C. (the “LLC”). The LLC is owned and/or controlled by our Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer, Charif Souki. Our Code of Business Conduct and Ethics prohibits potential conflicts of interest. Upon the recommendation of our Audit Committee, which
determined that the terms of the charter letter were fair and in our best interest, our Board of Directors unanimously approved the terms of the charter letter in May 2005 and
granted an exception under our Code of Business Conduct and Ethics in order to permit us to charter the Challenger 600 aircraft. For the six months ended June 30, 2006, we
incurred expenses of $111,000 related to the charter of the Challenger 600 aircraft owned by the LLC. For the six months ended June 30, 2007, there were no expenses incurred
related to such aircraft.

NOTE 14—Supplemental Cash Flow Information and Disclosures of Non-Cash Transactions
The following table provides supplemental disclosure of cash flow information (in thousands):

 

   
Six Months Ended

June 30,
   2007   2006
Cash paid for interest, net of amounts capitalized   $ 55,110  $ 23,221
Construction-in-progress additions recorded as accrued liabilities   $ 54,787  $ 41,503

NOTE 15—Business Segment Information
We have four business segments: LNG receiving terminal, natural gas pipeline, LNG and natural gas marketing and oil and gas exploration and development. These

segments reflect lines of business for which separate financial information is produced internally and are subject to evaluation by our chief operating decision makers in
deciding how to allocate resources.

Our LNG receiving terminal segment is in various stages of developing three LNG receiving terminal projects along the U.S. Gulf Coast at the following locations:
Sabine Pass LNG, approximately 90.6% owned (as
 

16



Index to Financial Statements

CHENIERE ENERGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

(unaudited)
 
of June 30, 2007), in western Cameron Parish, Louisiana on the Sabine Pass Channel; Corpus Christi LNG, 100% owned, near Corpus Christi, Texas; and Creole Trail LNG,
100% owned, at the mouth of the Calcasieu Channel in central Cameron Parish, Louisiana. In addition, we own a 30% limited partner interest in a fourth project, Freeport LNG,
located on Quintana Island near Freeport, Texas.

Our natural gas pipeline segment is in various stages of developing three, 100% owned, natural gas pipelines in connection with our three LNG receiving terminals to
provide access to North American natural gas markets.

Our LNG and natural gas marketing segment is in its early stages of development. We intend to purchase LNG from foreign suppliers, arrange transportation of LNG to
our network of LNG receiving terminals and other terminals, utilize our revaporization capacity at our LNG receiving terminals and other terminals to revaporize imported
LNG, arrange the transportation of revaporized natural gas through our pipelines and other interconnected pipelines, and sell natural gas to buyers. To develop our capacity to
resell revaporized natural gas in the future, we are engaged in domestic natural gas purchase and sale, transportation and storage transactions, including financial derivative
transactions, as part of our marketing activities.

Our oil and gas exploration and development segment conducts and participates in exploration, development and production activities focused in the shallow waters of
the Gulf of Mexico.

The following table summarizes revenues, net income (loss) from operations and total assets for each of our operating segments (in thousands):
 

   
Three Months Ended

June 30,   
Six Months Ended

June 30,  
   2007   2006   2007   2006  
Revenues:      

LNG receiving terminal   $ —    $ —    $ —    $ —   
Natural gas pipeline    —     —     —     —   
LNG and natural gas marketing    (1,847)  —     (3,936)  —   
Oil and gas exploration and development    2,719   413   3,551   835 

  

Total    872   413   (385)  835 
Corporate and other (1)    —     —     —     —   

  

Total consolidated    872  $ 413   (385) $ 835 
  

Net income (loss):      
LNG receiving terminal   $ (13,340) $ (15,152) $ (28,406) $ (30,872)
Natural gas pipeline    (1,147)  10,480   (1,886)  8,812 
LNG and natural gas marketing    (6,490)  (1,604)  (11,950)  (2,839)
Oil and gas exploration and development    2,507   (1,193)  2,843   (2,378)

  

Total    (18,470)  (7,469)  (39,399)  (27,277)
Corporate and other (1)    (22,649)  3,850   (36,276)  7,847 

  

Total consolidated   $ (41,119) $ (3,619) $ (75,675) $ (19,430)
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June 30,

2007   
December 31,

2006
Total assets:     

LNG receiving terminal   $ 2,063,374  $ 1,975,666
Natural gas pipeline    208,119   49,223
LNG and natural gas marketing    75,303   44,499
Oil and gas exploration and development    3,067   3,481

    

Total    2,349,863   2,072,869
Corporate and other (1)    734,561   531,619

    

Total consolidated   $ 3,084,424  $ 2,604,488
    

(1) Includes corporate activities and certain intercompany eliminations.

NOTE 16—Share-Based Compensation
We have granted options to purchase common stock to employees, consultants and outside directors under the Cheniere Energy, Inc. Amended and Restated 1997 Stock

Option Plan (“1997 Plan”) and the Cheniere Energy, Inc. Amended and Restated 2003 Stock Incentive Plan (“2003 Plan”). Effective January 1, 2006, we adopted SFAS
No. 123R (revised 2004), Share-Based Payment, which revised SFAS No. 123 and superseded Accounting Principles Bulletins (“APB”) No. 25. No adjustments to prior
periods were made as a result of adopting SFAS No. 123R. SFAS No. 123R requires that all share-based payments to employees be recognized in the financial statements based
on their fair values at the date of grant. The calculated fair value is recognized as expense (net of any capitalization) over the requisite service period, net of estimated
forfeitures, using the straight-line method under SFAS No. 123R. We consider many factors when estimating expected forfeitures, including types of awards, employee class
and historical experience. The statement was adopted using the modified prospective method of application, which requires compensation expense to be recognized in the
financial statements for all unvested stock options beginning in the quarter of adoption.

For the three and six months ended June 30, 2007, the total stock-based compensation expense (net of capitalization) recognized in our net loss was $12.7 million and
$19.3 million, respectively. For the three and six months ended June 30, 2007, the total stock-based compensation cost capitalized as part of the cost of capital assets was $0.3
million and $0.7 million, respectively.

For the three and six months ended June 30, 2006, the total stock-based compensation expense (net of capitalization) recognized in our net loss was $5.3 million and
$10.9 million, respectively. For the three and six months ended June 30, 2006, the total stock-based compensation cost capitalized as part of the cost of capital assets was $0.3
million and $0.6 million, respectively.

The total unrecognized compensation cost at June 30, 2007 relating to non-vested share-based compensation arrangements granted under the 1997 Plan and 2003 Plan,
before any capitalization, was $142.2 million. That cost is expected to be recognized over 4.75 years, with a weighted average period of 1.4 years.

SFAS No. 123R had no effect on net cash flow. Once we become a taxpayer, we will recognize cash flow resulting from tax deductions in excess of recognized
compensation cost as a financing cash flow. We received total proceeds from the exercise of stock options of $1.7 million during each of the six months ended June 30, 2007
and 2006.
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Phantom Stock
On May 25, 2007, the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors’ (the “Compensation Committee”) approved the form of the 2007 Phantom Stock Grant and

the number of shares of phantom stock to be issued to certain executive officers and other key employees pursuant to the 2007 Incentive Compensation Plan (“2007 Plan”). The
Compensation Committee also approved a 2008-2010 Incentive Compensation Plan (“2008-2010 Plan”) covering executive officers and other key employees for the
performance periods of 2008, 2009 and 2010. A total of 537,000 and 1,611,000 shares of phantom stock were granted under the 2007 and 2008-2010 Plans, respectively, which
will be payable in shares of our common stock if stock price hurdles established by the plans are achieved. At its sole discretion, the Compensation Committee may elect to
settle all or part of the phantom stock in cash. Using a Monte Carlo simulation, fair values of $18.4 million, $16.2 million, $13.4 million and $11.1 million were calculated for
the performance periods 2007, 2008, 2009 and 2010, respectively. A projected earnings date was also forecasted on which the stock price hurdle will be achieved for the award
related to each performance period. The fair value of the award for each performance period will be amortized as compensation expense ratably from the date of plan approval to
the date it is expected to be earned. For the three and six months ended June 30, 2007, a total of $5.0 million was recognized as compensation expense relating to these awards.

Stock Options
During the first six months of 2007, we issued options to purchase 10,000 shares of our common stock under the 2003 Plan.

We estimate the fair value of stock options under SFAS No. 123R at the date of grant using a Black-Scholes valuation model, which is consistent with the valuation
technique we previously utilized to value stock options for the footnote disclosures required under SFAS No. 123. The following table provides the weighted average
assumptions used in the Black-Scholes stock option valuation model to value stock options granted in the six months ended June 30, 2007 and 2006, respectively. The risk-free
rate is based on the U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of grant. The expected term (estimated period of time outstanding) of stock options granted in 2007 is based on
the “simplified” method of estimating expected term for “plain vanilla” stock options allowed by SAB No. 107, Valuation of Share-based Payment Agreements for Public
Companies, and varies based on the vesting period and contractual term of the stock option. Expected volatility for stock options granted in 2007 is based on an equally
weighted average of the implied volatility of exchange traded stock options on our common stock expiring more than one year from the measurement date, and historical
volatility of our common stock for a period equal to the stock option’s expected life. We have not declared dividends on our common stock.
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CHENIERE ENERGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

(unaudited)
 

The table below provides a summary of stock option activity under the combined plans as of June 30, 2007, and changes during the six months then ended:
 

   
Stock

Options   

Weighted
Average
Exercise

Price   

Weighted
Average

Remaining
Contractual

Term   

Aggregate
Intrinsic

Value
   (in thousands)        (in thousands)
Outstanding at January 1, 2007   5,187  $ 34.25    
Granted   10   33.18    
Exercised   (434)  5.36    
Forfeited or Expired   (16)  31.63    

      

Outstanding at June 30, 2007   4,747  $ 36.90  6.7  $ 38,265
      

Exercisable at June 30, 2007   1,282  $ 17.92  3.9  $ 26,865
      

Effective March 28, 2007, we amended certain existing stock option grants to provide for acceleration of vesting upon termination, under certain circumstances, within
one year of a change of control event, or upon the death or disability of the stock option holder. The adoption of this amendment did not have an impact on our assessment of
stock options ultimately expected to vest, and, therefore, will have no current impact on our financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

Stock and Non-Vested Stock
We have granted stock and non-vested stock to employees, executive officers, one consultant and outside directors under the 2003 Plan. Under SFAS No. 123R, grants

of non-vested stock are accounted for on an intrinsic value basis. No recognition of deferred compensation is made in stockholders’ equity. Instead, the amortization of the
calculated value of non-vested stock grants is accounted for as a charge to compensation and an increase in additional paid-in-capital over the requisite service period.

In January 2007, 628,396 shares having three-year graded vesting were issued to our employees and executive officers in the form of non-vested (restricted) stock
awards related to our performance in 2006. In May 2007, 30,574 shares having a one-year graded vesting were issued to our directors. In the six months ended June 30, 2007, a
total of 179,741 shares of non-vested stock having four-year graded vesting were issued to new and existing employees.

On May 25, 2007, the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors approved a bonus plan covering substantially all employees not otherwise included in the
2007 Plan. This plan provides covered employees the ability to earn bonuses based on the achievement of established annual performance goals as well as a stock price
appreciation goal. For some employees, part of the bonus may be paid in restricted stock that has graded vesting in three equal amounts over a three-year period. A fair value of
$10.3 million has been estimated for the restricted stock expected to be granted in 2008 for the 2007 performance period. It has been calculated by analysis of the likelihood of
plan goals being achieved, Monte Carlo simulation of our projected stock price appreciation, and the target bonus available to each covered employee. The fair value will be
recalculated at each balance sheet date until the total number of restricted shares to be granted, if any, has been determined. Because of the existence of the stock price
appreciation goal, which is a market condition, the restricted stock is not eligible for amortization under the straight-line method, and each vesting tranche is being amortized
separately. For the three and six months ended June 30, 2007, a total of $0.5 million was recognized as compensation expense relating to the restricted stock currently forecasted
to be awarded in 2008 for 2007 performance under the bonus plan.
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CHENIERE ENERGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

(unaudited)
 

The table below provides a summary of the status of our outstanding non-vested shares under the 2003 Plan as of June 30, 2007, and changes during the three months
then ended (in thousands except for per share information). It does not include any shares forecasted to be granted in 2008.
 

   

Non-
Vested
Shares   

Weighted
Average
Grant-
Date

Fair Value
Per Share

Non-vested at January 1, 2007   555  $ 33.97
Granted (1)   839   29.54
Vested   (47)  36.25
Forfeited (2)   (6)  30.58

  

Non-vested at June 30, 2007   1,341  $ 31.05
  

(1) Includes awards of 31,500 non-vested shares granted under the French Addendum to the 2003 Plan, which were not issued and outstanding at June 30, 2007.
(2) Includes awards of 225 cancelled shares granted under the French Addendum to the 2003 Plan.

Share-Based Plan Descriptions and Information
Our 1997 Plan provides for the issuance of stock options to purchase up to 5.0 million shares of our common stock, all of which have been granted. Non-qualified stock

options were granted to employees, contract service providers and outside directors. Terms for the remaining unexercised stock options are five years with vesting that generally
occurs on a graded basis over three years.

Our 2003 Plan provides for the issuance of up to an aggregate of 11.0 million shares of our common stock. These awards may be in the form of non-qualified stock
options, incentive stock options, purchased stock, restricted (non-vested) stock, bonus (unrestricted) stock, stock appreciation rights, phantom stock, and other stock-based
performance awards deemed by the Compensation Committee of our Board of Directors to be consistent with the purposes of the 2003 Plan. To date, awards made by the
Compensation Committee have been in the form of non-qualified stock options, restricted stock, bonus stock and phantom stock. Beginning in 2005, stock options granted to
employees as hiring incentives have been granted at the money with 10-year terms and graded vesting over four years. Prior to that time, stock options granted as hiring
incentives were granted at the money with five-year terms and graded vesting over three years. Retention grants made to employees provide for exercise prices at or in excess of
the stock price on the grant date, 10-year terms and graded vesting over three years, which commences on the fourth anniversary of the grant date. Restricted stock that has been
granted as a hiring incentive vests over four years on a graded basis, while restricted stock granted from a bonus pool vests over three years. Shares issued under the 2003 Plan
are generally newly issued shares. The phantom stock will be payable in shares of the Company’s common stock subject to the common stock meeting or exceeding established
price hurdles during the last 20 trading days of a performance year. Any phantom stock not payable following December 31, 2010 will be forfeited.

NOTE 17—Subsequent Events
In July 2007, we purchased approximately 3.2 million shares of our common stock for a cash price of $35.42 per share under the call options acquired in the issuer call

spread purchased by us in connection with the issuance of the Convertible Senior Unsecured Notes. These purchases completed the acquisition of our common stock under the
call options, bringing our total stock purchased to approximately 9.2 million shares with an aggregate purchase price of approximately $325.0 million.
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 ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

INFORMATION REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This quarterly report contains certain statements that are, or may be deemed to be, “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act
of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”), and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”). All statements, other than statements of
historical fact, included herein are “forward-looking statements.” Included among “forward-looking statements” are, among other things:
 

 

•  statements relating to the construction and operation of each of our proposed liquefied natural gas (“LNG”) receiving terminals or our proposed pipelines, or
expansions or extensions thereof, including statements concerning the completion or expansion thereof by certain dates or at all, the costs related thereto and
certain characteristics, including amounts of regasification and storage capacity, the number of storage tanks and docks, pipeline deliverability and the number of
pipeline interconnections, if any;

 

 •  statements regarding any financing transactions or arrangements, or ability to enter into such transactions, whether on the part of Cheniere or at the project level;
 

 
•  statements regarding any terminal use agreement (“TUA”) or other agreement to be entered into or performed substantially in the future, including any cash

distributions and revenues anticipated to be received and the anticipated timing thereof, and statements regarding the amounts of total regasification capacity that
are, or may become subject to, TUAs or other contracts;

 

 •  statements regarding counterparties to our TUAs, construction contracts and other contracts;
 

 •  statements regarding any business strategy, any business plans or any other plans, forecasts, projections or objectives, any or all of which are subject to change;
 

 •  statements regarding legislative, governmental, regulatory, administrative or other public body actions, requirements, permits, investigations, proceedings or
decisions;

 

 •  statements regarding our anticipated LNG and natural gas marketing activities; and
 

 •  any other statements that relate to non-historical or future information.

These forward-looking statements are often identified by the use of terms and phrases such as “achieve,” “anticipate,” “believe,” “estimate,” “expect,” “forecast,” “plan,”
“project,” “propose,” “strategy” and similar terms and phrases. Although we believe that the expectations reflected in these forward-looking statements are reasonable, they do
involve assumptions, risks and uncertainties, and these expectations may prove to be incorrect. You should not place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements, which
speak only as of the date of this quarterly report.

As used herein, the terms “Cheniere,” “we,” “our” and “us” refer to Cheniere Energy, Inc. and its wholly-owned or controlled subsidiaries, unless otherwise stated or
indicated by context.

Our actual results could differ materially from those anticipated in these forward-looking statements as a result of a variety of factors, including those discussed under
“Risk Factors” in our annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2006. All forward-looking statements attributable to us or persons acting on our behalf are
expressly qualified in their entirety by these risk factors. These forward-looking statements are made as of the date of this quarterly report.
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BUSINESS AND OPERATIONS

General
We are currently engaged primarily in the business of developing and constructing, and then owning and operating, a network of three onshore LNG receiving terminals,

and related natural gas pipelines, along the Gulf Coast of the United States. We are also developing a business to market LNG and natural gas. To a limited extent, we are also
engaged in oil and natural gas exploration and development activities in the Gulf of Mexico. We operate four business activities: LNG receiving terminal business, natural gas
pipeline business, LNG and natural gas marketing business, and oil and gas exploration and development business.

LNG Receiving Terminal Business
We have focused our LNG receiving terminal development efforts on the following three projects: the Sabine Pass LNG receiving terminal in western Cameron Parish,

Louisiana on the Sabine Pass Channel; the Corpus Christi LNG receiving terminal near Corpus Christi, Texas; and the Creole Trail LNG receiving terminal at the mouth of the
Calcasieu Channel in central Cameron Parish, Louisiana.

Our ownership interest in the Sabine Pass LNG receiving terminal is held through Cheniere Energy Partners, L.P. (“Cheniere Partners”), a Delaware limited partnership,
in which we hold an approximate 90.6% interest as a result of the completion of an initial public offering of common units in Cheniere Partners as well as the exercise of the
underwriters’ option to purchase additional common units in Cheniere Partners. In turn, Cheniere Partners owns a 100% interest in Sabine Pass LNG, L.P. (“Sabine Pass LNG”),
which is currently developing the Sabine Pass LNG receiving terminal. We currently own 100% interests in the Corpus Christi and Creole Trail LNG receiving terminals. In
addition, we own a 30% limited partner interest in a fourth LNG receiving terminal project, Freeport LNG, located on Quintana Island near Freeport, Texas. The three LNG
receiving terminals under development by us have an aggregate designed regasification capacity of approximately 10 billion cubic feet per day (“Bcf/d”), subject to expansion.
Sabine Pass LNG has entered into long-term TUAs with Total LNG USA, Inc. (“Total”), Chevron USA, Inc. (“Chevron”) and Cheniere Marketing, Inc. (“Cheniere
Marketing”), our wholly-owned subsidiary, for regasification capacity at the Sabine Pass LNG receiving terminal.

Construction of the Sabine Pass LNG receiving terminal commenced in March 2005, and we anticipate commencing commercial operation during the second quarter of
2008. We will contemplate making final investment decisions to complete construction of the Corpus Christi LNG receiving terminal and to commence construction of the
Creole Trail LNG receiving terminal upon, among other things, achieving acceptable commercial arrangements and arranging appropriate financing.

Natural Gas Pipeline Business
We anticipate developing natural gas pipelines from each of our three LNG receiving terminals to provide access to North American natural gas markets. Construction of

the Sabine Pass Pipeline (consisting of 16 miles of natural gas pipeline) commenced in the second quarter of 2007, and we anticipate that it will be available for operations in the
fourth quarter of 2007. Construction of Phase 1 of the Creole Trail Pipeline (consisting of 78 miles of natural gas pipeline) commenced in the second quarter of 2007, and we
anticipate that Phase 1 operations will commence in the second quarter of 2008. In July 2007, we filed an application with the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission
(“FERC”) to merge our Sabine Pass Pipeline into our Creole Trail Pipeline, creating a 151 mile integrated pipeline system. Phase 1 of this combined system will consist of
approximately 94 miles originating at the Sabine Pass LNG receiving terminal and extending through Cameron, Caleasieu and Beauregard Parishes, Louisiana. Construction
contracts for the Corpus Christi Pipeline have not been negotiated.

LNG and Natural Gas Marketing Business
Our LNG and natural gas marketing business is in its early stages of development. We intend to purchase LNG primarily from foreign suppliers, arrange the

transportation of LNG to our network of LNG receiving
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terminals, utilize Cheniere Marketing’s capacity at our LNG receiving terminals to revaporize imported LNG, arrange the transportation of revaporized natural gas through our
pipelines and other interconnected pipelines, and sell natural gas to buyers. Alternatively, we may purchase LNG from foreign suppliers and sell the LNG to foreign purchasers
if more favorable economic conditions exist in those markets. To develop our capability to resell revaporized natural gas in the future, we are engaging in domestic natural gas
purchase and sale, transportation and storage transactions, including financial derivative transactions, as part of our marketing activities.

Other LNG Interests
Through an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary, we hold a minority interest in J & S Cheniere S.A. (“J & S Cheniere”), which was formed to engage in LNG transportation

and trading through the utilization and management of LNG tankers. The majority interest in J & S Cheniere is held by one other shareholder, Mercuria Energy Holding B.V.
(“Mercuria”), a Netherlands corporation affiliated with Mercuria Energy Group Ltd., an international petroleum trading and marketing company. On May 8, 2007, the
agreement between the shareholders of J & S Cheniere was amended (“J & S Cheniere Amended Agreement”), and we increased our minority interest in J & S Cheniere to 49%.
The remaining 51% of the shares of J & S Cheniere continues to be held by Mercuria.

Oil and Gas Exploration and Development Business
Although our focus is primarily on the development of LNG-related businesses, we continue to be involved to a limited extent in oil and gas exploration, development

and production activities focused in the shallow waters of the Gulf of Mexico.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

General
We are primarily engaged in LNG-related business activities. Our three LNG receiving terminal projects, as well as our proposed pipelines, will require significant

amounts of capital and are subject to risks and delays in completion. In addition, our marketing business will need a substantial amount of capital for hiring employees,
satisfying creditworthiness requirements of contracts and developing the systems necessary to implement our business strategy.

We have obtained financing and approval of our board of directors to construct the following projects, as more fully described below: Phase 1 and Phase 2—Stage 1 of
the Sabine Pass LNG receiving terminal; and the combined Sabine Pass and Phase 1 Creole Trail Pipeline. The estimated costs of these projects, before financing costs, are,
$1.4 billion to $1.5 billion for the Sabine Pass LNG receiving terminal and $500 million to $550 million for the combined Sabine Pass and Phase 1 Creole Trail Pipeline.

As of June 30, 2007, we had an unrestricted Cash and Cash Equivalents balance of $710.8 million. In addition, we have $1.0 billion in Restricted Cash and Cash
Equivalents and U.S. Treasury Securities, including $619.6 million for the remaining construction costs of the initial phase (“Phase 1”) and the first stage of the second phase
(“Phase 2—Stage 1”) of the Sabine Pass LNG receiving terminal, $280.9 million for interest payments through May 2009 related to the Sabine Pass LNG notes and $97.8
million for cash distributions through the distribution made in respect of the quarter ending June 2009 to the common unitholders of Cheniere Partners and related distributions
to its general partner. As a result, we believe that we have adequate financial resources available to us to implement the currently approved projects described above. Our LNG-
related business activities are not expected to begin to operate and generate significant cash flows before 2008, at the earliest.
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Our LNG Receiving Terminals
Sabine Pass LNG

Customer TUAs
Each of the customers at the Sabine Pass LNG receiving terminal must make capacity payments under its TUA on a basis that we commonly refer to as “take-or-pay,”

which means that the customer will be obligated to pay the full contracted amount of monthly capacity fees whether or not it uses any of its reserved capacity. Provided the
Sabine Pass LNG receiving terminal has achieved commercial operation, which we expect will occur during the second quarter of 2008, these “take-or-pay” TUA payments will
be made by the following customers:
 

 
•  Total has reserved approximately 1.0 Bcf/d of regasification capacity and has agreed to make monthly payments to Sabine Pass LNG aggregating approximately

$125 million per year for 20 years commencing April 1, 2009. Total, S.A. has guaranteed Total’s obligations under its TUA up to $2.5 billion, subject to certain
exceptions;

 

 
•  Chevron has reserved approximately 1.0 Bcf/d of regasification capacity and has agreed to make monthly payments to Sabine Pass LNG aggregating

approximately $125 million per year for 20 years commencing not later than July 1, 2009. Chevron Corporation has guaranteed Chevron’s obligations under its
TUA up to 80% of the fees payable by Chevron; and

 

 
•  Cheniere Marketing has reserved approximately 2.0 Bcf/d of regasification capacity, is entitled to use any capacity not utilized by Total and Chevron and has

agreed to make monthly payments to Sabine Pass LNG aggregating approximately $250 million per year for at least 19 years commencing January 1, 2009, plus
payments of $5 million per month commencing with commercial operations in 2008. We have guaranteed Cheniere Marketing’s obligations under its TUA.

Each of Total and Chevron has paid us $20 million in nonrefundable advance capacity reservation fees, which will be amortized over a 10-year period as a reduction of
each customer’s regasification capacity fees payable under its TUA.

Construction of Receiving Terminal
The Sabine Pass LNG terminal is being constructed in two phases. Phase 1 of the Sabine Pass LNG receiving terminal was designed with an initial regasification

capacity of 2.6 Bcf/d and three LNG storage tanks with an aggregate LNG storage capacity of 10.1 billion cubic feet (“Bcf”). Construction of Phase 1 began in March 2005. We
estimate the cost to construct Phase 1 of the Sabine Pass LNG receiving terminal will be approximately $900 million to $950 million, before financing costs. As of June 30,
2007, we had paid $753 million of Phase 1 construction costs.

Phase 2—Stage 1 of the development of the Sabine Pass LNG receiving terminal is designed to increase the regasification capacity from 2.6 Bcf/d to 4.0 Bcf/d by
adding two LNG storage tanks, additional vaporizers and related facilities. We estimate the cost to construct Phase 2—Stage 1 of the Sabine Pass LNG receiving terminal will
be approximately $500 million to $550 million, before financing costs. As of June 30, 2007, we had paid $100.8 million of Phase 2—Stage 1 construction costs.

We estimate that the aggregate cost to complete construction of Phase 1 and Phase 2—Stage 1 of the Sabine Pass LNG receiving terminal will be approximately $1.4
billion to $1.5 billion, before financing costs. Our cost estimates are subject to change due to such items as cost overruns, change orders, increased component and material costs,
escalation of labor costs and increased spending to maintain our construction schedule. We will fund our construction period capital resource requirements from a portion of the
$2,032 million in net proceeds received from Sabine Pass LNG’s issuance in November 2006 of senior secured notes (the “Sabine Pass LNG notes”).
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Corpus Christi LNG
In order to accelerate the timing of its development of the Corpus Christ LNG receiving terminal, Corpus Christi LNG elected in April 2006 to commence preliminary

site work and entered into an engineering, procurement and construction services agreement for such preliminary work which has since been completed. Engineering and design
work on the LNG receiving terminal is ongoing. We contemplate making a decision to complete construction of the Corpus Christi LNG receiving terminal upon, among other
things, achieving acceptable commercial arrangements and entering into acceptable financing arrangements.

Creole Trail LNG
We contemplate making a decision to commence construction of the Creole Trail LNG receiving terminal upon, among other things, achieving acceptable commercial

arrangements and entering into acceptable financing arrangements.

Other LNG Interests
Freeport LNG
We have a 30% limited partner interest in Freeport LNG. Under the limited partnership agreement of Freeport LNG, development expenses of the Freeport LNG project

and other Freeport LNG cash needs generally are to be funded out of Freeport LNG’s own cash flows, borrowings or other sources, and with capital contributions by the limited
partners. We did not receive any capital calls, and made no capital contributions, in the first or second quarter of 2007, nor do we anticipate any capital calls in the foreseeable
future.

J & S Cheniere S.A.
Under the J & S Cheniere Amended Agreement, the two shareholders have each loaned $25 million to J & S Cheniere for the purpose of collateralizing certain

obligations of J & S Cheniere relating to two LNG tanker time charters, and Mercuria has canceled prior loans to J & S Cheniere. This agreement provides for priority of
distributions in that Mercuria is entitled to receive from J & S Cheniere the first $15.9 million of distributions, after which we will be entitled to the next $10.0 million of
distributions. Thereafter, distributions will be made pro rata in accordance with the number of shares owned by each shareholder. The J & S Cheniere Amended Agreement also
provides Mercuria the right to acquire all of our J & S Cheniere shares in the event that we experience a change in control. The purchase price for such shares would equal the
total contributions and loans made by us to J & S Cheniere plus any remaining unpaid portion of our $10.0 million distribution entitlement, and would be adjusted for our pro
rata share of the undistributed amount of profits or losses incurred by J & S Cheniere.

Our Proposed Pipelines
We currently expect to fund the costs of pipeline projects approved by our board of directors from existing cash balances. We estimate the total cost to construct the

Sabine Pass Pipeline and Phase 1 of the Creole Trail Pipeline to be approximately $500 million to $550 million. This estimate includes the costs to construct the pipelines and
costs related to interconnections with third-party pipelines and to right-of-ways. We have sufficient funds to construct these pipelines. As of June 30, 2007, we had paid $180.3
million of construction costs for the Sabine Pass Pipeline and Phase 1 of the Creole Trail Pipeline.

Construction contracts for the Corpus Christi Pipeline have not been negotiated.

Our Marketing Business
We are in the early stages of developing our LNG and natural gas marketing business. We will need funds to develop our marketing business, including capital required

to satisfy any creditworthiness requirements under
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contracts and to develop the systems necessary to implement our business strategy and to hire additional employees to conduct our natural gas marketing activities. We expect to
provide for these expenses with available cash balances. We have committed $60 million to our marketing and trading activities, in addition to funding overhead costs and
storage charges. We expect that our committed amount will increase as our LNG and natural gas marketing business develops.

Cheniere Energy Partners, L.P. Initial Public Offering
On March 26, 2007, Cheniere Partners and Cheniere LNG Holdings, LLC (“Holdings”), our wholly-owned subsidiary, completed a public offering of a total of

13,500,000 Cheniere Partners’ common units (the “Offering”). Cheniere Partners received $98.4 million of net proceeds upon issuance of 5,054,164 common units to the public
in the Offering, and Holdings received $164.5 million of net proceeds in connection with its sale of 8,445,836 common units of Cheniere Partners. In April 2007, the
underwriters of the Offering exercised their over-allotment option with Holdings for the sale of an additional 2,025,000 common units. Holdings received $39.4 million of net
proceeds from such sale. The $203.9 million net proceeds received by Holdings is unrestricted as to its use by us while the $98.4 million received by Cheniere Partners is
restricted and is invested in U.S. Treasury Securities to fund a distribution reserve. As a result of these transactions, our combined general partner and limited partner ownership
interest in Cheniere Partners was reduced to approximately 90.6%.

For each calendar quarter through June 30, 2009, Cheniere Partners will make quarterly cash distributions of $0.425 per unit on all outstanding common units, as well as
related distributions to the general partner, using cash and earned interest from the distribution reserve that was funded with the $98.4 million of net proceeds that it received
from the Offering. From the date of the Offering through June 30, 2009, based on our current holdings of approximately 41% of the common units and 100% of the general
partner units, we will receive $4.8 million per quarter out of the total $11.4 million quarterly distribution. After June 30, 2009, the distribution reserve is expected to have been
depleted, and Cheniere Partners will have to rely on the receipt of operating revenues from Sabine Pass LNG’s various TUAs to fund future quarterly cash distributions to us and
other unitholders.

In addition to the 10,891,357 common units held by Holdings (subsequent to the underwriters’ exercise of their over-allotment option), Holdings, through a wholly-
owned subsidiary, holds 135,383,831 subordinated units of Cheniere Partners. Holdings’ common and subordinated units represent an aggregate 88.6% ownership interest in
Cheniere Partners. During the subordination period, however, the subordinated units will not be entitled to receive any distributions until the common units have received the
initial quarterly distributions plus any arrearages on the initial quarterly distribution from prior quarters. The subordinated units do not accrue arrearages. The subordination
period generally will end if:
 

 •  Cheniere Partners has earned and paid at least $0.425 on each outstanding common unit, subordinated unit and general partner unit for each of the three
consecutive, non-overlapping four-quarter periods ending on or after June 30, 2010; or

 

 •  if Cheniere Partners has earned and paid at least $0.638 (150% of the initial quarterly distribution) on each outstanding common unit, subordinated unit and
general partner unit for any four consecutive quarters ending on or after June 30, 2008.

In addition to the 3,302,045 general partner units, representing a 2% ownership interest, held by the general partner of Cheniere Partners, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Holdings, the general partner also owns incentive distribution rights, which entitle it to increasing percentages of the cash that Cheniere Partners distributes in excess of $0.489
per unit per quarter.
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Debt Agreements
Sabine Pass LNG Senior Secured Notes

In November 2006, Sabine Pass LNG consummated a private offering of an aggregate principal amount of $2,032 million of Sabine Pass LNG notes, consisting of $550
million of 7 1/4 % Senior Secured Notes due 2013 and $1,482 million of 7 1/2% Senior Secured Notes due 2016.

Interest on the Sabine Pass LNG notes is payable semi-annually in arrears on May 30 and November 30 of each year, beginning May 30, 2007. The Sabine Pass LNG
notes are secured on a first-priority basis by a security interest in all of Sabine Pass LNG’s equity interests and substantially all of its operating assets.

Under the indenture governing the Sabine Pass LNG notes, except for permitted tax distributions, Sabine Pass LNG may not make distributions until certain conditions
are satisfied. The indenture requires that Sabine Pass LNG apply its net operating cash flow (i) first, to fund with monthly deposits its next semiannual payment of
approximately $75.5 million of interest on the Sabine Pass LNG notes, and (ii) second, to fund a one-time, permanent debt service reserve fund equal to one semiannual interest
payment of approximately $75.5 million on the Sabine Pass LNG notes. Distributions will be permitted only after Phase 1 target completion, as defined in the indenture
governing the Sabine Pass LNG notes, or such earlier date as project revenues are received, upon satisfaction of the foregoing funding requirements, after satisfying a fixed
charge coverage ratio test of 2:1 and after satisfying other conditions specified in the indenture.

Convertible Senior Unsecured Notes
In July 2005, we consummated a private offering of $325 million aggregate principal amount of Convertible Senior Unsecured Notes due 2012 to qualified institutional

buyers pursuant to Rule 144A under the Securities Act. The notes bear interest at a rate of 2.25% per year. The notes are convertible at any time into our common stock under
certain circumstances at an initial conversion rate of 28.2326 per $1,000 principal amount of the notes, which is equal to a conversion price of approximately $35.42 per share.
We may redeem some or all of the notes on or before August 1, 2012, for cash equal to 100% of the principal plus any accrued and unpaid interest if in the previous 10 trading
days the volume-weighted average price of our common stock exceeds $53.13, subject to adjustment, for at least five consecutive trading days. In the event of such redemption,
we will make an additional payment equal to the present value of all remaining scheduled interest payments through August 1, 2012, discounted at the U.S. Treasury rate plus
50 basis points. The indenture governing the notes contains customary reporting requirements.

Concurrently with the issuance of the Convertible Senior Unsecured Notes, we also entered into hedge transactions in the form of an issuer call spread (consisting of a
purchase and a sale of call options on our common stock) with an affiliate of the initial purchaser of the notes, having a term of two years and a net cost to us of $75.7 million.
These hedge transactions were entered into to offset potential dilution from conversion of the notes. The net cost of the hedge transactions was recorded as a reduction to
Additional Paid-in-Capital in accordance with the guidance of Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”) Issue 00-19, Accounting for Derivative Financial Instruments Indexed to,
and Potentially Settled in, a Company’s Own Stock. Net proceeds from the offering were $239.8 million, after deducting the cost of the hedge transactions, the underwriting
discount and related fees. As of June 30, 2007, no holders had elected to convert their notes.

On July 26, 2007, we completed the acquisition of approximately 9.2 million shares of our commons stock under the call options for an aggregate cash price of
approximately $325 million.

2007 Term Loan
On May 31, 2007, Cheniere Subsidiary Holdings, LLC (“Cheniere Subsidiary”), a newly formed wholly-owned subsidiary of Cheniere, entered into a $400.0 million

credit agreement (“2007 Term Loan”). Borrowings
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under the 2007 Term Loan generally bear interest at a fixed rate of 9.75% per annum. Interest is calculated on the unpaid principal amount of the 2007 Term Loan outstanding
and is payable quarterly in arrears on March 31, June 30, September 30 and December 31 of each year, commencing June 30, 2007. The 2007 Term Loan will mature on
May 31, 2012. The net proceeds from the 2007 Term Loan were $391.7 million and are being used for general corporate purposes, including the repurchase, completed in July
2007, of approximately 9.2 million shares of our outstanding common stock pursuant to the exercise of the call options acquired in the issuer call spread purchased by us in
connection with the issuance of the Convertible Senior Unsecured Notes.

Short-Term Liquidity Needs
We anticipate funding our more immediate liquidity requirements, including expenditures related to the construction of our LNG receiving terminals and pipelines, the

growth of our marketing business and our oil and gas exploration, development and exploitation activities, through a combination of any or all of the following:
 

 •  cash balances;
 

 •  issuances of debt and equity securities, including issuances of common stock pursuant to exercises by the holders of existing stock options;
 

 •  sales of units of Cheniere Partners;
 

 •  LNG receiving terminal capacity reservation fees; and
 

 •  collection of receivables.

Historical Cash Flows
The following table summarizes the changes in our cash and cash equivalents for the six months ended June 30, 2007 and 2006 (in thousands). Additional discussion of

the key elements contributing to the changes between periods follows the table.
 

   
Six Months Ended

June 30,  
   2007   2006  
Cash provided by (used in):    

Operating activities   $ (23,844) $ (35,145)
Investing activities    (211,194)  (143,371)
Financing activities    482,877   143,532 

  

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents   $ 247,839  $ (34,984)
  

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period   $ 710,802  $ 657,608 
  

Operating Activities—Net cash used in operations decreased to $23.8 million during the six months ended June 30, 2007 compared to $35.1 million during the six
months ended June 30, 2006. This $11.3 million decrease was primarily due to a greater utilization of restricted cash and cash equivalents to fund our operations during the first
six months of 2007 compared to the same period in 2006.

Investing Activities—Net cash used in investing activities was $211.2 million during the six months ended June 30, 2007 compared to $143.4 million during the six
months ended June 30, 2006. During the first six months of 2007, we invested $360.4 million in constructing our LNG receiving terminals and pipelines, $98.4 million in
restricted treasury securities, $25.0 million in an unconsolidated affiliate, $11.8 million in advances to contractors and $15.9 million in fixed assets. These investment activities
were offset by a $300.3 million use of our restricted cash investments during the first six months of 2007 related to funding of our terminal construction activities discussed
above. During the first six months of 2006, we invested $160.5 million relating to Phase 1
 

29



Index to Financial Statements

construction activities at our Sabine Pass LNG receiving terminal, $4.0 million in fixed assets and $2.6 million in oil and gas drilling activities. These investment activities were
partially offset by a $26.8 million use of our restricted cash investments during the first six months of 2006 to fund our Sabine Pass LNG receiving terminal construction
activities discussed above and to make payments of interest and principal relating to the Holdings’ term loan outstanding at that time.

Financing Activities—Net cash provided by financing activities was $482.9 million during the six months ended June 30, 2007 compared to $143.5 million during the six
months ended June 30, 2006. During the first six months of 2007, we received proceeds of $400.0 million from borrowings under the 2007 Term Loan, $203.9 million in net
proceeds from the sale of common units in Cheniere Partners and $98.4 million in net proceeds from the issuance of Cheniere Partners common units to minority owners. See
Note 2—“Initial Public Offering of Cheniere Energy Partners, L.P. and Minority Interest” of our Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for further discussion. These were
partially offset by the use of $212.6 million to acquire 6.0 million shares of our common stock under a call spread option and $8.9 million for debt issuance cost associated with
the 2007 Term Loan. During the first six months of 2006, we received proceeds from borrowings under a Sabine Pass LNG credit facility totaling $149.0 million and
$1.7 million from the issuance of common stock related to stock option exercises. These proceeds were partially offset by a $3.0 million Holdings’ term loan principal payment
and $3.0 million in debt issuance costs related to the Sabine Pass credit facility, which became due upon the first borrowing under the facility, and $0.3 million in debt issuance
costs relating to the refinancing of this facility during the second quarter of 2006. In addition, we paid federal withholding taxes of $0.9 million in exchange for 24,300 shares of
our common stock previously awarded to an executive officer.

Transactions in our Common Stock
During the first six months of 2007, 208,728 shares of our common stock were issued pursuant to the exercise of stock options, resulting in net cash proceeds of $1.7

million. In addition, 206,359 shares of common stock were issued in satisfaction of cashless exercises of options to purchase 225,330 shares of common stock.

In January 2007, 628,396 shares of our common stock were issued to our employees and executive officers in the form of non-vested (restricted) stock awards related to
our performance in 2006. During the first six months of 2007, we issued an additional 179,741 shares of non-vested restricted stock to new and existing employees.

In May 2007, 30,574 shares of our common stock were issued to our outside directors in the form of non-vested restricted stock awards.

As of July 26, 2007, we had purchased all of the approximately 9.2 million shares of our common stock for a cash price of $35.42 per share purchaseable under the call
options acquired in the issuer call spread purchased by us in connection with the issuance of the Convertible Senior Unsecured Notes.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
As of June 30, 2007, we had no off-balance sheet debt or other such unrecorded obligations, and we have not guaranteed the debt of any other party.
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Three Months Ended June 30, 2007
vs. Three Months Ended June 30, 2006
Consolidated Results (in thousands):
 

   
Three Months Ended

June 30, 2007  

   

LNG
Receiving
Terminal   

Natural Gas
Pipeline   

LNG &
Natural Gas
Marketing   

Oil & Gas
Exploration

&
Development   

Corporate
& Other   Consolidated  

Revenue   $ —    $ —    $ (1,847) $ 2,719  $ —    $ 872 

Operating costs and expenses         
LNG receiving terminal and pipeline development expenses    9,583   949   —     —     —     10,532 
Exploration costs    —     —     —     14   —     14 
Oil and gas production costs    —     —     —     101   —     101 
Depreciation, depletion and amortization    90   7   172   91   1,153   1,513 
General and administrative expenses    1,587   84   5,075   6   22,184   28,936 

    

Total operating costs and expenses    11,260   1,040   5,247   212   23,337   41,096 
Income (loss) from operations    (11,260)  (1,040)  (7,094)  2,507   (23,337)  (40,224)
Interest expense    (17,728)  (107)  —     —     (8,095)  (25,930)
Interest income    14,549   —     604   —     8,967   24,120 
Other income    —     —     —     —     (184)  (184)

    

Income (loss) before income taxes and minority interest    (14,439)  (1,147)  (6,490)  2,507   (22,649)  (42,218)
Minority interest    1,099   —     —     —     —     1,099 

    

Net income (loss)   $ (13,340) $ (1,147) $ (6,490) $ 2,507  $ (22,649) $ (41,119)
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Three Months Ended

June 30, 2006  

   

LNG
Receiving
Terminal   

Natural Gas
Pipeline   

LNG &
Natural Gas
Marketing   

Oil & Gas
Exploration

&
Development   

Corporate
& Other   Consolidated 

Revenue   $ —    $ —    $ —    $ 413  $ —    $ 413 

Operating costs and expenses        
LNG receiving terminal and pipeline development expenses    5,746   (10,252)  —     —     —     (4,506)
Exploration costs    —     —     —     590   —     590 
Oil and gas production costs    —     —     —     55   —     55 
Depreciation, depletion and amortization    34   —     7   —     538   579 
General and administrative expenses    1,917   10   1,597   961   7,959   12,444 

  

Total operating costs and expenses    7,697   (10,242)  1,604   1,606   8,497   9,162 
Income (loss) from operations    (7,697)  10,242   (1,604)  (1,193)  (8,497)  (8,749)
Derivative gain    162   —     —     —     —     162 
Interest expense    (9,588)  130   —     —     (1,638)  (11,096)
Interest income    1,971   —     —     —     8,364   10,335 
Other income    —     108   —     —     —     108 

  

Income (loss) before income taxes and minority interest    (15,152)  10,480   (1,604)  (1,193)  (1,771)  (9,240)
Income tax benefit    —     —     —     —     5,621   5,621 
Minority interest    —     —     —     —     —     —   

  

Net income (loss)   $(15,152) $ 10,480  $ (1,604) $ (1,193) $ 3,850  $ (3,619)
  

Financial results for the second quarter of 2007 reflect a net loss of $41.1 million, or $0.76 per share (basic and diluted), compared to a net loss of $3.6 million, or $0.07
per share (basic and diluted), for the second quarter of 2006.

The major factors contributing to our net loss of $41.1 million during the second quarter of 2007 were LNG terminal and pipeline development expenses of $10.5
million, general and administrative (“G&A”) expenses of $28.9 million and interest expense of $25.9 million. These expenses were partially offset by interest income of $24.1
million. The major factors contributing to our net loss of $3.6 million during the second quarter of 2006 were charges for G&A expenses of $12.4 million and interest expense
of $11.1 million, partially offset by interest income of $10.3 million, an income tax benefit of $5.6 million and a $4.5 million credit in LNG receiving terminal and pipeline
development expenses. The credit in LNG receiving terminal and pipeline development expenses arose from our application of SFAS No. 71 in the second quarter of 2006,
whereby $12.3 million of natural gas pipeline development costs previously charged to expense were capitalized as a regulatory asset. Our net loss for the second quarter of
2006 excluding the $12.3 million expense recapture was $15.9 million, or $0.30 per share (basic and diluted).

LNG Receiving Terminal Segment
Financial results for our LNG receiving terminal segment for the second quarter of 2007 reflect a net loss of $13.3 million, compared to a net loss of $15.2 million for the

second quarter of 2006.

LNG receiving terminal development expenses were 68.4% higher in the second quarter of 2007 with expenses of $9.6 million compared to expenses of $5.7 million in
the second quarter of 2006. Our development
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expenses include professional costs associated with front-end engineering and design work, obtaining orders from the FERC authorizing construction of our facilities and other
required permitting for our planned LNG receiving terminals. In addition, development expenses include other costs related to employees directly involved in our development
and pre-commissioning activities and land site rentals.

The major factors contributing to the increased LNG development expenses were higher employee related costs of $1.7 million and $2.9 million of incremental
marketing expenses incurred by the LNG receiving terminal segment. These increases were partially offset by lower expenses of $1.2 million relating to the expansion of our
Sabine Pass LNG receiving terminal due to construction commencing in the third quarter of 2006. The higher employee related costs were due to our LNG staff increasing from
an average of 54 LNG receiving terminal employees in the second quarter of 2006 to an average of 135 employees in the second quarter of 2007. This increase in staff was
primarily related to the operations and maintenance employees who will ultimately be operating the Sabine Pass LNG receiving terminal. During the three months ended
June 30, 2007, a substantial portion of these costs was expensed, as it related to training and other activities not subject to capitalization.

G&A expenses were 15.8% lower in the second quarter of 2007, with expenses of $1.6 million compared to expenses of $1.9 million in the second quarter of 2006.
During the second quarter of 2007, we capitalized labor and overhead costs totaling $0.3 million, including labor costs associated with the terminal operations management
system that is being implemented for our LNG receiving terminals, compared to zero during the second quarter of 2006.

The increase in interest income to $14.5 million in the second quarter of 2007 compared to $2.0 million in the second quarter of 2006 was due to an increase in average
invested cash balances from the Sabine Pass LNG notes issued in November 2006. Similarly, the increase in interest expense, net of capitalization, to $17.7 million in the
second quarter of 2007 from $9.6 million for the same period in 2006 was due to the issuance of the Sabine Pass LNG notes.

Natural Gas Pipeline Segment
Financial results for our natural gas pipeline segment for the second quarter of 2007 reflect a net loss of $1.1 million, compared to net income of $10.5 million for the

second quarter of 2006.

Natural gas pipeline development expenses increased to $0.9 million in the second quarter of 2007 compared to a credit of $10.3 million in the second quarter of 2006.
Historically, our natural gas pipeline development expenses primarily included professional fees associated with front-end engineering and design work, obtaining orders from
the FERC authorizing construction of our pipelines and other required permitting for our planned natural gas pipelines. During the second quarter of 2006, however, we
recognized regulatory assets, as prescribed by Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 71, that had previously been expensed as pipeline development
expenses. The impact of recording these regulatory assets reduced pipeline development expense in the second quarter of 2006 by $12.3 million. Natural gas pipeline
development expenses for the second quarter of 2006, excluding the impact of recording regulatory assets, would have been $2.0 million. Not including the impact of the
recognition of regulatory assets in the second quarter of 2006, there was a decrease in natural gas pipeline development expenses of $1.1 million between periods, primarily
relating to the Creole Trail Pipeline.

LNG and Natural Gas Marketing Segment
Financial results for our LNG and natural gas marketing segment for the second quarter of 2007 reflect a net loss of $6.5 million, compared to a net loss of $1.6 for the

second quarter of 2006. We incurred a marketing and trading loss of $1.8 million in the second quarter of 2007 compared to zero in the second quarter of 2006, as we
commenced natural gas trading activities in December 2006.
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G&A expenses increased to $5.1 million in the second quarter of 2007 compared to expenses of $1.6 million in the second quarter of 2006. G&A expenses in the second
quarter of 2007 were primarily related to employee costs. Our marketing staff increased from an average of 14 LNG and natural gas marketing employees in the second quarter
of 2006 to an average of 38 employees in the second quarter of 2007, resulting in an increase in total compensation expense to $4.3 million (including non-cash compensation of
$1.9 million) in the second quarter of 2007 compared to $1.0 million in the second quarter of 2006.

We earned $0.6 million in interest income in the second quarter of 2007 compared to zero in the second quarter of 2006 due to an increase in average invested cash
balances as a result of our $60.0 million investment in marketing and trading activities.

Oil and Gas Exploration and Development Segment
Financial results for our oil and gas exploration and development segment for the second quarter of 2007 reflect net income of $2.5 million, compared to a net loss of

$1.2 million for the second quarter of 2006. The increase in net income was primarily due to an increase in oil and gas revenue ($1.5 million) resulting from a legal settlement
relating to a disputed overriding royalty interest in an offshore Gulf of Mexico well.

Corporate and Other
Financial results for corporate and other activities for the second quarter of 2007 reflect a net loss of $22.6 million, compared to net income of $3.8 million for the second

quarter of 2006.

G&A expenses increased 177.5% to $22.2 million in the second quarter of 2007 compared to $8.0 million in the second quarter of 2006. Our corporate staff increased
from an average of 90 employees in the second quarter of 2006 to an average of 140 employees in the second quarter of 2007, resulting in total compensation of $16.1 million
(including non-cash compensation of $9.0 million) in the second quarter of 2007 compared to $6.0 million (including non-cash compensation of $3.3 million) in the second
quarter of 2006. In addition, we had an increase of $4.1 million in professional fees and other incremental expenses in the second quarter of 2007 compared to the second
quarter of 2006.

Interest expense was $8.1 million in the second quarter of 2007 compared to $1.6 million in the second quarter of 2006. The increase was due to an increase in the
amount of outstanding indebtedness due to the 2007 Term Loan.

Interest income increased to $9.0 million in the second quarter of 2007 compared to $8.4 million in the second quarter of 2006 due primarily to an increase in average
invested cash balances.

A tax benefit of $5.6 million was recognized in the second quarter of 2006 relating to the portion of the change in our tax asset valuation account that is allocable to the
deferred income tax on items reported in accumulated other comprehensive income on derivative instruments in accordance with SFAS No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes,
and EITF Abstracts, Topic D-32.
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Six Months Ended June 30, 2007
vs. Six Months Ended June 30, 2006
 

   
Six Months Ended

June 30, 2007  

   

LNG
Receiving
Terminal   

Natural Gas
Pipeline   

LNG &
Natural Gas
Marketing   

Oil & Gas
Exploration

&
Development   

Corporate
& Other   Consolidated  

Revenue   $ —    $ —    $ (3,936) $ 3,551  $ —    $ (385)

Operating costs and expenses        
LNG receiving terminal and pipeline development expenses    14,881   1,405   —     —     —     16,286 
Exploration costs    —     —     —     372   —     372 
Oil and gas production costs    —     —     —     168   —     168 
Depreciation, depletion and amortization    136   7   276   180   1,990   2,589 
General and administrative expenses    2,820   156   8,840   (9)  38,390   50,197 

  

Total operating costs and expenses    17,837   1,568   9,116   711   40,380   69,612 
Income (loss) from operations    (17,837)  (1,568)  (13,052)  2,840   (40,380)  (69,997)
Interest expense    (41,121)  (318)  —     —     (10,917)  (52,356)
Interest income    29,394   —     1,102   3   15,204   45,703 
Other income    —     —     —     —     (183)  (183)

  

Income (loss) before income taxes and minority interest    (29,564)  (1,886)  (11,950)  2,843   (36,276)  (76,833)
Minority interest    1,158   —     —     —     —     1,158 

  

Net income (loss)   $ (28,406) $ (1,886) $ (11,950) $ 2,843  $ (36,276) $ (75,675)
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Six Months Ended

June 30, 2006  

   

LNG
Receiving
Terminal   

Natural Gas
Pipeline   

LNG &
Natural Gas
Marketing   

Oil & Gas
Exploration

&
Development  

Corporate
& Other   Consolidated 

Revenue   $ —    $ —    $ —    $ 835  $ —    $ 835 

Operating costs and expenses        
LNG receiving terminal and pipeline development expenses    12,391   (8,584)  —     —     —     3,807 
Exploration costs    —     —     —     1,428   —     1,428 
Oil and gas production costs    —     —     —     105   —     105 
Depreciation, depletion and amortization    63   —     7   59   1,056   1,185 
General and administrative expenses    4,084   10   2,832   1,797   16,902   25,625 

  

Total operating costs and expenses    16,538   (8,574)  2,839   3,389   17,958   32,150 
Income (loss) from operations    (16,538)  8,574   (2,839)  (2,554)  (17,958)  (31,315)
Derivative gain    923   —     —     —     —     923 
Interest expense    (19,109)  130   —     —     (3,255)  (22,234)
Interest income    3,852   —     —     —     16,027   19,879 
Other income    —     108   —     176   —     284 

  

Income (loss) before income taxes and minority interest    (30,872)  8,812   (2,839)  (2,378)  (5,186)  (32,463)
Income tax benefit    —     —     —     —     13,033   13,033 
Minority interest    —     —     —     —     —     —   

  

Net income (loss)   $(30,872) $ 8,812  $ (2,839) $ (2,378) $ 7,847  $ (19,430)
  

Financial results for the six months ended June 30, 2007 reflect a net loss of $75.7 million, or $1.38 per share (basic and diluted), compared to a net loss of $19.4 million,
or $0.36 per share (basic and diluted), for the six months ended June 30, 2006.

The major factors contributing to our net loss of $75.7 million during the first six months of 2007 were G&A expenses of $50.2 million, interest expense of $52.4 million
and LNG receiving terminal and pipeline development expenses of $16.3 million, partially offset by interest income of $45.7 million and minority interest of $1.2 million. The
major factors contributing to our net loss of $19.4 million during the first six months of 2006 were LNG receiving terminal and pipeline development expenses of $3.8 million,
G&A expenses of $25.6 million, and interest expense of $22.2 million, offset by interest income of $19.9 million and an income tax benefit of $13.0 million. Included in the
$3.8 million of LNG receiving terminal and pipeline development expenses is a credit of $12.3 million. This credit represents the amount of pipeline development expenses
previously charged to expense that constitute a regulatory asset as a result of our application of SFAS No. 71 in the second quarter of 2006. Our net loss for the first six months
of 2006 excluding the $12.3 million credit was $31.7 million, or $0.59 per share (basic and diluted).

LNG Receiving Terminal Segment
Financial results for our LNG receiving terminal segment for the first six months of 2007 reflect a net loss of $28.4 million, compared to a net loss of $30.9 million for

the first six months of 2006.
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LNG development expenses were $14.9 million in the first six months of 2007 compared to $12.4 million in the first six months of 2006. Our development expenses
primarily include costs of front-end engineering and design work, obtaining orders from the FERC authorizing construction of our facilities and other required permitting for
our planned LNG receiving terminals. Other expenses directly related to the development of our LNG receiving terminals include expenses of our LNG employees directly
involved in the development activities. The $2.5 million increase in development expenses for the first six months of 2007 compared to the first six months of 2006 primarily
resulted from an increase in employee-related costs of $4.2 million and public relations, travel and seminars of $3.3 million. The increase in employee-related costs was due to
our increase in the average number of LNG receiving terminal employees to 112 in the first six months of 2007 from 50 in the first six months of 2006. This increase in
employees resulted primarily from the hiring of employees who will ultimately be operating our Sabine Pass LNG receiving terminal. The increase in public relations, travel
and seminars was due to Hurricane Rita relief efforts and costs related to conferences. These costs were offset by a decrease of $5.5 million in legal and other incremental
development expenses and technical and engineering costs due to front-end engineering and design work related to our Corpus Christi and Creole Trail LNG receiving
terminals and expansion of our Sabine Pass LNG receiving terminal that we incurred in 2006.

G&A expenses were $2.8 million in the first six months of 2007 compared to $4.1 million in the first six months of 2006. The $1.3 million decrease between periods was
primarily due to an increase in capitalized labor costs associated with the Sabine Pass receiving terminal and the terminal operations management system implemented for our
LNG receiving terminals and lower public relations and other professional costs related to software evaluation costs and Hurricane Rita relief.

Interest income and interest expense increased $25.5 million and $22.0 million, respectively, from the first six months of 2006 compared to the first six months of 2007.
The increase in interest income was due to investment income on the proceeds from the Sabine Pass LNG notes issued in November 2006. Similarly, the increase in interest
expense, net of capitalization, from $19.1 million in the first six months of 2006 to $41.1 million in the same period in 2007 was due to the interest on the Sabine Pass LNG
notes.

Natural Gas Pipeline Segment
Financial results for our natural gas pipeline segment for the first six months of 2007 reflect a net loss of $1.9 million, compared to net income of $8.8 million for the first

six months of 2006.

Natural gas pipeline development expenses increased $10.0 million in the first six months of 2007 to $1.4 million compared to a negative $8.6 million in the first six
months of 2006. Historically, our natural gas pipeline development expenses primarily included professional fees associated with front-end engineering and design work,
obtaining orders from the FERC authorizing construction of our facilities and other required permitting for our planned natural gas pipelines. During the first six months of
2006, however, we recognized regulatory assets, as prescribed by SFAS No. 71 that had previously been expensed as pipeline development expenses. The impact of recording
these regulatory assets reduced pipeline development expenses in the first six months of 2006 by $12.3 million. Natural gas pipeline development expenses for the first six
months of 2006, excluding the impact of recording regulatory assets, would have been $3.7 million. Excluding the impact of the recognition of regulatory assets in the first six
months of 2006, there was a decrease in natural gas pipeline development expenses of $2.3 million between periods. The decrease was primarily related to front-end
engineering and design work for the Creole Trail Pipeline that we incurred in 2006.

LNG and Natural Gas Marketing Segment
Financial results for our LNG and natural gas marketing segment for the first six months of 2007 reflect a net loss of $12.0 million, compared to a net loss of $2.8 million

for the first six months of 2006. We incurred a marketing and trading revenue loss of $3.9 million in the first six months of 2007 compared to zero in the first six months of
2006. We commenced natural gas trading activities in December 2006.
 

37



Index to Financial Statements

G&A expenses were $8.8 million in the first six months of 2007 compared to $2.8 million in the first six months of 2006. Our G&A expenses increased primarily due to
employee costs. The increase in employee-related costs was due to our increase in the average number of LNG and natural gas marketing employees to 36 in the first six months
of 2007 from 10 in the first six months of 2006, resulting in an increase in total compensation expense of $7.4 million (including non-cash compensation of $3.1 million) in the
first six months of 2007 compared to $1.7 million (including non-cash compensation of $0.6 million) in the first six months of 2006. This increase in employees resulted from
the continued development of our LNG and natural gas marketing business.

We earned $1.1 million in interest income in the first six months of 2007 compared to zero in the first six months of 2006 due to higher average invested cash balances as
a result of our initial $40.0 million investment in the marketing and trading activities in November 2006.

Oil and Gas Exploration and Development Segment
Financial results for our oil and gas exploration and development segment for the first six months of 2007 reflect a net income of $2.8 million, compared to a net loss of

$2.4 million for the first six months of 2006. The increase in net income was a result of an increase in production volumes from the addition of a successful well, the favorable
settlement of a disputed overriding royalty interest, and a decrease in exploration costs and general costs.

Corporate and Other
Financial results for our corporate and other activities for the first six months of 2007 reflect a net loss of $36.3 million, compared to net income of $7.8 million for the

first six months of 2006.

G&A expenses increased 127.2% to $38.4 million in the first six months of 2007 compared to $16.9 million in the first six months of 2006. Our corporate staff increased
from an average of 80 employees in the first six months of 2006 to an average of 134 employees in the first six months of 2007, resulting in higher total compensation of $27.0
million (including non-cash compensation of $13.4 million) in the first six months of 2007 compared to $11.9 million (including non-cash compensation of $6.4 million) in the
first six months of 2006. In addition, we had an increase of $6.4 million in professional fees and other in the first six months of 2007 compared to the first six months of 2006.

Interest expense was $10.9 million in the first six months of 2007 compared to $3.3 million in the first six months of 2006. The increase was primarily a result of the
2007 Term Loan entered into in May 2007.

Interest income decreased to $15.2 million in the first six months of 2007 compared to $16.0 million in the first six months of 2006 due to a decrease in average invested
cash balances, primarily as a result of repayment of the Holdings term loan in November 2006, partially offset by the investment of funds received from the 2007 Term Loan in
May 2007.

A tax benefit of $13.0 million was recognized in the first six months of 2006 relating to the portion of the change in our tax asset valuation account that is allocable to the
deferred income tax on items reported in accumulated other comprehensive income on derivative instruments in accordance with SFAS No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes,
and EITF Abstracts, Topic D-32.
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OTHER MATTERS

Critical Accounting Estimates and Policies
The selection and application of accounting policies is an important process that has developed as our business activities have evolved and as the accounting rules have

developed. Accounting rules generally do not involve a selection among alternatives but involve an implementation and interpretation of existing rules, and the use of
judgment, to the specific set of circumstances existing in our business. We make every effort to comply properly with all applicable rules on or before their adoption, and we
believe that the proper implementation and consistent application of the accounting rules are critical. However, not all situations are specifically addressed in the accounting
literature. In these cases, we must use our best judgment to adopt a policy for accounting for these situations. We accomplish this by analogizing to similar situations and the
accounting guidance governing them.

Accounting for LNG Activities
Generally, we begin capitalizing the costs of our LNG receiving terminals and related pipelines once the individual project meets the following criteria: (i) regulatory

approval has been received, (ii) financing for the project is available and (iii) management has committed to commence construction. Prior to meeting these criteria, most of the
costs associated with a project are expensed as incurred. These costs primarily include professional fees associated with front-end engineering and design work, costs of
securing necessary regulatory approvals, and other preliminary investigation and development activities related to our LNG receiving terminals and related pipelines.

Generally, costs that are capitalized prior to a project meeting the criteria otherwise necessary for capitalization include: land costs, costs of lease options and the costs of
certain permits, which are capitalized as intangible LNG assets. The costs of lease options are amortized over the life of the lease once it is obtained. If no lease is obtained, the
costs are expensed. Site rental costs and related amortization of capitalized options have been capitalized during the construction period through the end of 2005. Beginning in
2006, such costs have been expensed as required by the FASB Staff Position No. 13-1.

During the construction periods of our LNG receiving terminals, we capitalize interest and other related debt costs in accordance with SFAS No. 34, Capitalization of
Interest Cost, as amended by SFAS No. 58, Capitalization of Interest Cost in Financial Statements That Include Investments Accounted for by the Equity Method (an
Amendment of FASB Statement No. 34). Upon commencement of operations, capitalized interest, as a component of the total cost, will be amortized over the estimated useful
life of the asset.

Regulated Operations
Our developing natural gas pipeline business is subject to the jurisdiction of the FERC in accordance with the Natural Gas Act of 1938 and the Natural Gas Policy Act of

1978, and we have determined that certain of our pipeline systems to be constructed have met the criteria set forth in SFAS No. 71. Accordingly, we have applied the provisions
of SFAS No. 71 to the affected pipeline subsidiaries beginning in the second quarter of 2006.

Our application of SFAS No. 71 is based on the current regulatory environment, our current projected tariff rates, and our ability to collect those rates. Future regulatory
developments and rate cases could impact this accounting. Although discounting of our maximum tariff rates may occur, we believe the standards required by SFAS No. 71 for
its application are met and the use of regulatory accounting under SFAS No. 71 best reflects the results of future operations in the economic environment in which we will
operate. Regulatory accounting requires us to record assets and liabilities that result from the rate-making process that would not be recorded under GAAP for non-regulated
entities. We will continue to evaluate the application of regulatory accounting
 

39



Index to Financial Statements

principles based on on-going changes in the regulatory and economic environment. Items that may influence our assessment are:
 

 •  inability to recover cost increases due to rate caps and rate case moratoriums;
 

 •  inability to recover capitalized costs, including an adequate return on those costs through the rate-making process and the FERC proceedings;
 

 •  excess capacity;
 

 •  increased competition and discounting in the markets we serve; and
 

 •  impacts of ongoing regulatory initiatives in the natural gas industry.

Natural gas pipeline costs include amounts capitalized as an Allowance for Funds Used During Construction (“AFUDC”). The rates used in the calculation of AFUDC
are determined in accordance with guidelines established by the FERC. AFUDC represents the cost of debt and equity funds used to finance our natural gas pipeline additions
during construction. AFUDC is capitalized as a part of the cost of our natural gas pipelines. Under regulatory rate practices, we generally are permitted to recover AFUDC, and
a fair return thereon, through our rate base after our natural gas pipelines are placed in service.

Revenue Recognition
LNG receiving terminal capacity reservation fees are recognized as revenue over the term of the respective TUAs. Advance capacity reservation fees are deferred

initially.

Cash Flow Hedges
As defined in SFAS No. 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities, cash flow hedge transactions hedge the exposure to variability in expected

future cash flows (i.e., in our case, the variability of floating interest rate exposure). In the case of cash flow hedges, the hedged item (the underlying risk) is generally
unrecognized (i.e., not recorded on the balance sheet prior to settlement), and any changes in the fair value, therefore, will not be recorded within earnings. Conceptually, if a
cash flow hedge is effective, this means that a variable, such as a movement in interest rates, has been effectively fixed so that any fluctuations will have no net result on either
cash flows or earnings. Therefore, if the changes in fair value of the hedged item are not recorded in earnings, then the changes in fair value of the hedging instrument (the
derivative) must also be excluded from the income statement or else a one-sided net impact on earnings will be reported, despite the fact that the establishment of the effective
hedge results in no net economic impact. To prevent such a scenario from occurring, SFAS No. 133 requires that the fair value of a derivative instrument designated as a cash
flow hedge be recorded as an asset or liability on the balance sheet, but with the offset reported as part of OCI, to the extent that the hedge is effective. We assess, both at the
inception of each hedge and on an on-going basis, whether derivatives that are used in our hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting changes in cash flows of the
hedged items. On an on-going basis, we monitor the actual dollar offset of the hedges’ market values compared to hypothetical cash flow hedges. Any ineffective portion will
be reflected in earnings. Ineffectiveness is the amount of gains or losses from derivative instruments that are not offset by corresponding and opposite gains or losses on the
expected future transaction.

Goodwill
Goodwill is accounted for in accordance with SFAS No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets. We perform an annual goodwill impairment review in the fourth

quarter of each year, although we may perform a goodwill impairment review more frequently whenever events or circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be
recoverable.
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Share-Based Compensation Expense
Effective January 1, 2006, we adopted the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123R using the modified prospective transition method. Under this method, we

recognize compensation expense for all share-based payments granted after January 1, 2006 and prior to, but not yet vested as of, January 1, 2006, in accordance with
SFAS 123R. Under the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS 123R, we recognize stock-based compensation net of an estimated forfeiture rate and only recognize
compensation cost for those shares expected to vest.

Determining the appropriate fair value model and calculating the fair value of share-based payment awards require the input of highly subjective assumptions, including
the expected life of the share-based payment awards and stock price volatility. We use various methods to estimate the fair value of share-based payment awards depending on
the characteristics of the award. The assumptions used in calculating the fair value of share-based payment awards represent our best estimates, but these estimates involve
inherent uncertainties and the application of management judgment. As a result, if factors change and we use different assumptions, our stock-based compensation expense
could be materially different in the future. In addition, we are required to estimate the expected forfeiture rate and only recognize expense for those shares expected to vest. If
our actual forfeiture rate is materially different from our estimate, the stock-based compensation expense could be significantly different from what we have recorded in the
current period. See Note 16—”Share-Based Compensation” of our Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for a further discussion on share-based compensation.
 
 Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk
Oil and Gas Exploration Commodity Price Risk

We produce and sell natural gas, crude oil and condensate. As a result, our financial results can be affected as these commodity prices fluctuate widely in response to
changing market forces. We have not entered into any derivative transactions related to our oil and gas exploration activities.

Marketing and Trading Commodity Price Risk

Through Cheniere Marketing, we conduct natural gas marketing and trading activities. We use value at risk (“VaR”) and other methodologies for market risk
measurement and control purposes. For the three and six months ended June 30, 2007, the one-day VaR with a 95% confidence interval of our marketing and trading positions
averaged $0.2 million and $0.3 million, respectively. At June 30, 2007, the one-day VaR of our marketing and trading positions was $0.1 million.

Cash Investments
We have cash investments that we manage based on internal investment guidelines that emphasize liquidity and preservation of capital. Such cash investments are stated

at historical cost, which approximates fair market value on our Consolidated Balance Sheets.
 
 Item 4. Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We maintain a set of disclosure controls and procedures that are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by us in the reports filed by us under the
Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms. As of the end of the
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period covered by this report, we evaluated, under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and our Chief Financial
Officer, the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures pursuant to Rule 13a-15 of the Exchange Act. Based on that evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and our
Chief Financial Officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures are effective.

During the most recent fiscal quarter, there have been no changes in our internal control over financial reporting that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to
materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

PART II. OTHER INFORMATION
 
 Item 1. Legal Proceedings

We are, and in the future may be, involved as a party to various legal proceedings, which are incidental to the ordinary course of business. We regularly analyze current
information and, as necessary, provide accruals for probable liabilities on the eventual disposition of these matters. In the opinion of management and legal counsel, as of
June 30, 2007, there were no known threatened or pending legal matters that could reasonably be expected to have a material adverse impact on our consolidated results of
operations, financial position or cash flows.
 
 Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds
 

Period   
Total Number of
Shares Purchased  

Average Price Paid
per Share   

Total Number of
Shares Purchased as

Part of Publicly
Announced Plans or

Programs   

Maximum Number of
Shares that May Yet
Be Purchased Under

the Plans or
Programs

April 2007   —     —    —    —  
May 2007   —     —    —    —  
June 2007 (1)   6,000,000  $ 35.42  6,000,000  3,175,595

        

Total   6,000,000  $ 35.42  6,000,000  3,175,595
        

(1) As previously disclosed by Form 8-K dated May 31, 2007, we announced an irrevocable commitment to purchase 9,175,595 shares of our common stock from Credit
Suisse International at a cash price of $35.42 per share, for a total purchase price of approximately $325 million. We completed the purchase of the remaining shares in July
2007.
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 Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders
We held an annual meeting of our stockholders on May 25, 2007. The following individuals were elected to the Board of Directors: Vicky A. Bailey, David B. Kilpatrick

and J. Robinson West. In addition to the election of directors, the following matter was submitted to a vote and approved by stockholders: the ratification of the appointment of
Ernst & Young LLP as independent accountants for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2007. There were 56,105,761 shares of common stock outstanding and eligible to vote
as of the record date of March 27, 2007. The following table summarizes the results of the voting:

ITEM 1: ELECTION OF DIRECTORS
 

Director   Number of Votes For   
Number of Votes

Withheld

Vicky A. Bailey   43,383,306     97,179
David B. Kilpatrick   42,532,483   948,002
J. Robinson West   42,580,356   900,129

ITEM 2: RATIFICATION OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE’S APPOINTMENT OF ERNST & YOUNG LLP
 

Number of
Votes For  

Percent of
Votes   

Number of
Votes

Against  
Percent of

Votes   

Number of
Votes

Abstained  
Percent of

Votes  
43,392,734 99.80% 37,002 0.09% 50,749 0.12%

 
 Item 6. Exhibits

(a) Each of the following exhibits is filed herewith:
 
10.1

  
Change Orders 1, 2, 3, 4, 5 and 6 to Agreement for Engineering, Procurement and Construction Services, effective February 1, 2006, between Cheniere Sabine
Pass Pipeline Company and Willbros Engineers, Inc.

10.2
  

Change Orders 1, 2 and 3 to Construction Agreement dated January 10, 2007 between Cheniere Creole Trail Pipeline, L.P. and Sheehan Pipe Line Construction
Company

10.3
  

Change Orders 46, 47, 48 and 49 to Lump Sum Turnkey Engineering, Procurement and Construction Agreement dated December 18, 2004 between Sabine Pass
LNG, L.P. and Bechtel Corporation

10.4
  

Change Order 5 to Engineer, Procure and Construct (EPC) LNG Unit Rate Soil Contract, dated July 21, 2006, between Sabine Pass LNG, L.P. and Remedial
Construction Services, L.P.

10.5
  

Change Order 4 to Agreement for Engineering, Procurement, Construction and Management of Construction Services for the Sabine Phase 2 Receiving, Storage
and Regasification Terminal Expansion, dated July 21, 2006, between Sabine Pass LNG, L.P. and Bechtel Corporation

31.1   Certification by Chief Executive Officer required by Rule 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) under the Exchange Act

31.2   Certification by Chief Financial Officer required by Rule 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) under the Exchange Act

32.1   Certification by Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32.2   Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto
duly authorized.
 

CHENIERE ENERGY, INC.

/S/    DON A. TURKLESON        
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

(on behalf of the registrant and
as principal accounting officer)

Date: August 8, 2007
 

44



Exhibit 10.1

CHANGE ORDER FORM

PROJECT NAME: 42-inch Sabine Pass Pipeline Project
COMPANY: Sabine Pass Pipeline, L.P.
CONTRACTOR: Willbros Engineers, Inc.
CHANGE ORDER NUMBER: CO-001
DATE OF CHANGE ORDER: June 8, 2006
DATE OF AGREEMENT: February 1, 2006

The Agreement between the Parties listed above is changed as follows: (attach additional documentation if necessary)
In light of constrained resource availability, Cheniere has approved use of WEI affiliate Willbros RPI, Inc. for construction of the Work, in lieu of a competitive bidding process
to select the construction contractor. Consequently, in accordance with Attachment 1 of the Agreement, paragraph 2.1, “Contingency Pool”, the Contingency Pool shall be
reduced by fifty percent (50%) with a corresponding reduction in the Guaranteed Maximum Price.

Adjustment to price under the Agreement:
 
The original Guaranteed Maximum Price was   $ 67,670,200
Net change by previously authorized Change Orders is   $ 0
The Guaranteed Maximum Price prior to this Change Order was   $ 67,670,200
The Guaranteed Maximum Price will be (increased) (decreased) (unchanged) by this Change Order in the amount of   $ 2,326,200
The new Guaranteed Maximum Price including this Change Order will be   $ 65,344,000

Adjustment to dates:
The Preparation and Material Receipt Commencement Date will be (increased) (decreased) (unchanged) by 0 calendar days and as a result of this Change Order is
now:                 January 1, 2007

The Construction Commencement Date will be (increased) (decreased) (unchanged) by 0 calendar days and as a result of this Change Order is now:                 April 1, 2007



The Scheduled Mechanical Completion Date will be (increased) (decreased) (unchanged) by 0 calendar days and as a result of this Change Order is now:
                September 30, 2007

Other impacts to liability or obligation of Contractor or Company under the Agreement: None

Upon execution of this Change Order by Cheniere and Contractor, the above-referenced change shall become a valid and binding part of the original Agreement without
exception or qualification, unless noted in this Change Order. Except as modified by this and any previously issued Change Orders, all other terms and conditions of the
Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. This Change Order is executed by each of the Cheniere’s Authorized Representative and Contractor’s Authorized
Representative.
 
SABINE PASS PIPELINE, L.P.

Name  /s/ Stanley C. Horton
Title  CEO
Date of
Signing  9-6-06

 
 
WILLBROS ENGINEERS, INC.   WILLBROS ENGINEERS, INC.

Name  /s/ Mike Reifel   Name  /s/ Curtis E. Simkin
Title  Project Manager   Title  President
Date of
Signing  9/12/06   

Date of
Signing  9/13/06



CHANGE ORDER FORM

PROJECT NAME: 42-inch Sabine Pass Pipeline Project
COMPANY: Cheniere Sabine Pass Pipeline Company
CONTRACTOR: Willbros Engineers, Inc.
CHANGE ORDER NUMBER: CO-002
DATE OF CHANGE ORDER: July 26, 2006
DATE OF AGREEMENT: February 1, 2006
The Agreement between the Parties listed above is changed as follows: (attach additional documentation if necessary)
 •  Replacement of the 30” NGPL Side Valve with a 42” side valve for future connection,
 •  Replacement of a 42” temporary receiver at Johnson Bayou (to be used for post construction drying and caliper pigging) with a permanent bi-directional 42” x

48” scraper trap barrel with 12” kicker valve and two 42” heat induction bends.
Above changes result from the finalization of the pipeline system P&IDs for design on 7/10/06.

Adjustment to price under the Agreement:
 
The original Guaranteed Maximum Price was   $ 67,670,200 
Net change by previously authorized Change Orders (# )   $ (2,326,200)
The Guaranteed Maximum Price prior to the Change Order was   $ 65,344,000 
The Guaranteed Maximum Price will be (increased)(decreased)(unchanged) by this Change Order in the amount of   $ 459,635 
The new Guaranteed Maximum Price including this Change Order will be   $ 65,803,635 

Adjustment to dates:
 
The Preparation and Material Receipt Commencement Date will be (increased) (decreased) (unchanged) by 0 calendar days and as a result of this

Change Order is now:   January 1, 2007
The Construction Commencement Date will be (increased) (decreased) (unchanged) by 0 calendar days and as a result of this Change Order is now:   April 1, 2007
The Scheduled Mechanical Completion Date will be (increased) (decreased) (unchanged) by 0 calendar days and as a result of this Change Order is

now:   September 30, 2007



Other impacts to liability or obligation of Willbros or Cheniere under the Agreement: None

Upon execution of this Change Order by Cheniere and Willbros, the above-referenced change shall become a valid and binding part of the original Agreement without
exception or qualification, unless noted in this Change Order. Except as modified by this and any previously issued Change Orders, all other terms and conditions of the
Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. This Change Order is executed by each of the Cheniere’s Authorized Representative and Willbros’ Authorized Representative.
 
CHENIERE SABINE PASS PIPELINE COMPANY

Name  /s/ Stanley C. Horton
Cheniere’s Authorized Representative

Title  CEO
Date of
Signing  9-6-06

 
 
WILLBROS ENGINEERS, INC.

Name  /s/ Mike Reifel
Willbros’ Authorized Representative

Title  Project Manager
Date of
Signing   



CHANGE ORDER FORM

PROJECT NAME: 42-inch Sabine Pass Pipeline Project
COMPANY: Cheniere Sabine Pass Pipeline Company
CONTRACTOR: Willbros Engineers, Inc.
CHANGE ORDER NUMBER: CO-003
DATE OF CHANGE ORDER: December 8, 2006
DATE OF AGREEMENT: February 1, 2006
The Agreement between the Parties listed above is changed as follows: (attach additional documentation if necessary)
 •  Attachment II (Willbros Schedule of Rates) of the Letter Agreement expires 12/31/06. A new Attachment II is attached which becomes effective 1/1/07 and

expires 6/30/07.

Adjustment to price under the Agreement:
 
The original Guaranteed Maximum Price was   $ 67,670,200 
Net change by previously authorized Change Orders (#1 and 2 )   ($ 1,866,565)
The Guaranteed Maximum Price prior to the Change Order was   $ 65,803,635 
The Guaranteed Maximum Price will be (increased)(decreased)(unchanged) by this Change Order in the amount of   $ 0 
The new Guaranteed Maximum Price including this Change Order will be   $ 65,803,635 

Adjustment to dates:
 
The Preparation and Material Receipt Commencement Date will be (increased) (decreased) (unchanged) by 0 calendar days and as a result of this

Change Order is now:   January 1, 2007
The Construction Commencement Date will be (increased) (decreased) (unchanged) by 0 calendar days and as a result of this Change Order is now:   April 1, 2007
The Scheduled Mechanical Completion Date will be (increased) (decreased) (unchanged) by 0 calendar days and as a result of this Change Order is

now:   September 30, 2007



Other impacts to liability or obligation of Willbros or Cheniere under the Agreement: None

Upon execution of this Change Order by Cheniere and Willbros, the above-referenced change shall become a valid and binding part of the original Agreement without
exception or qualification, unless noted in this Change Order. Except as modified by this and any previously issued Change Orders, all other terms and conditions of the
Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. This Change Order is executed by each of the Cheniere’s Authorized Representative and Willbros’ Authorized Representative.
 
CHENIERE SABINE PASS PIPELINE COMPANY

Name  /s/ R. Keith Teague
Cheniere’s Authorized Representative

Title  President
Date of
Signing  12/20/2006

 
 
WILLBROS ENGINEERS, INC.

Name  /s/ Mike Reifel
Willbros’ Authorized Representative

Title  Project Manager
Date of
Signing  12/8/06



CHANGE ORDER FORM

PROJECT NAME: 42-inch Sabine Pass Pipeline Project
COMPANY: Cheniere Sabine Pass Pipeline Company
CONTRACTOR: Willbros Engineers, Inc.
CHANGE ORDER NUMBER: CO-004
DATE OF CHANGE ORDER: March 22, 2007
DATE OF AGREEMENT: February 1, 2006
The Agreement between the Parties listed above is changed as follows: (attach additional documentation if necessary)
 •  Re-configuration of Regulators / Launcher inside Cheniere’s LNG Terminal
Above changes result from the finalization of the pipeline system pipeline plans for design on 1/11/07.

Adjustment to price under the Agreement:
 
The original Guaranteed Maximum Price was   $ 67,670,200 
Net change by previously authorized Change Orders (# 1, 2 & 3)   $ (1,866,565)
The Guaranteed Maximum Price prior to the Change Order was   $ 65,803,635 
The Guaranteed Maximum Price will be (increased)(decreased)(unchanged) by this Change Order in the amount of   $ 315,296 
The new Guaranteed Maximum Price including this Change Order will be   $ 66,118,931 

Adjustment to dates:
 
The Preparation and Material Receipt Commencement Date will be (increased) (decreased) (unchanged) by 0 calendar days and as a result of this

Change Order is now:   January 1, 2007
The Construction Commencement Date will be (increased) (decreased) (unchanged) by 0 calendar days and as a result of this Change Order is now:   April 1, 2007
The Scheduled Mechanical Completion Date will be (increased) (decreased) (unchanged) by 0 calendar days and as a result of this Change Order is

now:   September 30, 2007
 



Other impacts to liability or obligation of Willbros or Cheniere under the Agreement: None

Upon execution of this Change Order by Cheniere and Willbros, the above-referenced change shall become a valid and binding part of the original Agreement without
exception or qualification, unless noted in this Change Order. Except as modified by this and any previously issued Change Orders, all other terms and conditions of the
Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. This Change Order is executed by each of the Cheniere’s Authorized Representative and Willbros’ Authorized Representative.
 
CHENIERE SABINE PASS PIPELINE COMPANY

Name  /s/ Stanley C. Horton
Cheniere’s Authorized Representative

Title  Chief Executive Officer
Date of
Signing  4/19/07

 
 
WILLBROS ENGINEERS, INC.

Name  /s/ Curtis E. Simkin
Willbros’ Authorized Representative

Title  President
Date of
Signing  4/25/07



CHANGE ORDER FORM

PROJECT NAME: 42-inch Sabine Pass Pipeline Project
COMPANY: Cheniere Sabine Pass Pipeline Company
CONTRACTOR: Willbros Engineers, Inc.
CHANGE ORDER NUMBER: CO-005
DATE OF CHANGE ORDER: April 11, 2007
DATE OF AGREEMENT: February 1, 2006
The Agreement between the Parties listed above is changed as follows: (attach additional documentation if necessary)
 •  Pond Crossing on Property Tract No. SP-CM-035.000, Richard J. Harrington, et ux, at Sta. 448+76 (MP 8.5).
Due to the uncertainties of the sheet piling and related costs for this activity, this change will be performed on a time and material basis utilizing the contract rates, the total cost
of which will be added to the Guaranteed Maximum Price. For estimating purposes, a provisional sum is used below.

This change order involves installation of a sheet piling bulkhead along the south side of the trench line (approximately 200 ft in length) where the pipeline crosses the pond,
filling in the pond with imported soil (provided by Cheniere) from the bulkhead northward, and installing the pipeline using conventional marsh construction techniques.
Specific design details for this installation remain to be developed.

Adjustment to price under the Agreement:
 
The original Guaranteed Maximum Price was   $ 67,670,200 
Net change by previously authorized Change Orders (#1-4 )   ($ 1,551,269)
The Guaranteed Maximum Price prior to the Change Order was   $ 66,118,931 
The Guaranteed Maximum Price will be (increased)(decreased)(unchanged) by this Change Order in the amount of (provisional sum shown)   $ 600,000 
The new Guaranteed Maximum Price including this Change Order will be (subject to adjustment as noted above)   $ 66,718,931 

Adjustment to dates:
 
The Preparation and Material Receipt Commencement Date will be (increased) (decreased) (unchanged) by 0 calendar days and as a result of this

Change Order is now:   January 1, 2007
The Construction Commencement Date will be (increased) (decreased) (unchanged) by 0 calendar days and as a result of this Change Order is now:   April 1, 2007
The Scheduled Mechanical Completion Date will be (increased) (decreased) (unchanged) by 0 calendar days and as a result of this Change Order is

now:   September 30, 2007
 



Other impacts to liability or obligation of Willbros or Cheniere under the Agreement: None

Upon execution of this Change Order by Cheniere and Willbros, the above-referenced change shall become a valid and binding part of the original Agreement without
exception or qualification, unless noted in this Change Order. Except as modified by this and any previously issued Change Orders, all other terms and conditions of the
Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. This Change Order is executed by each of the Cheniere’s Authorized Representative and Willbros’ Authorized Representative.
 
CHENIERE SABINE PASS PIPELINE COMPANY

Name  /s/ Stanley C. Horton
Cheniere’s Authorized Representative

Title  Chief Executive Officer
Date of
Signing  4/19/07

 
 
WILLBROS ENGINEERS, INC.

Name  /s/ Curtis E. Simkin
Willbros’ Authorized Representative

Title  President
Date of
Signing  4/25/07



CHANGE ORDER FORM

PROJECT NAME: 42-inch Sabine Pass Pipeline Project
COMPANY: Cheniere Sabine Pass Pipeline Company
CONTRACTOR: Willbros Engineers, Inc.
CHANGE ORDER NUMBER: CO-006
DATE OF CHANGE ORDER: April 10, 2007
DATE OF AGREEMENT: February 1, 2006
The Agreement between the Parties listed above is changed as follows: (attach additional documentation if necessary)
 •  Award of material handling at the Sabine Terminal construction dock and stockpiling at the laydown area to WRPI including supply of cranes, trucks, rigging

equipment and labor
 •  Compliance with Bechtel’s Project Marine Dock Procedure (copy attached) in that offloading of the concrete coated pipe from barges will now require additional

docking and use of a shuttle tug that previously was not planned

The total costs associated with this change will be taken from the “Contingency Pool” and as such the “Guaranteed Maximum Price” prior to this change order remains
unchanged. The net decrease to the Contingency Pool is an estimated $2,264,565 for the first bullet item above and $700,000 for the second bullet item for an estimated total of
$2,994,565 (provisional sum). These activities will handled on a time and material basis using contract rates and a WEI issued purchase order to WRPI.

Adjustment to price under the Agreement:
 
The original Guaranteed Maximum Price was   $ 67,670,200 
Net change by previously authorized Change Orders (#1-5)   ($ 951,269)
The Guaranteed Maximum Price prior to the Change Order was   $ 66,718,931 
The Guaranteed Maximum Price will be (increased)(decreased)(unchanged) by this Change Order in the amount of   $ -0- 
The new Guaranteed Maximum Price including this Change Order will be   $ 66.718,931 

Adjustment to dates:
 
The Preparation and Material Receipt Commencement Date will be (increased) (decreased) (unchanged) by 0 calendar days and as a result of this

Change Order is now:   January 1, 2007
The Construction Commencement Date will be (increased) (decreased) (unchanged) by 0 calendar days and as a result of this Change Order is now:   April 1, 2007
The Scheduled Mechanical Completion Date will be (increased) (decreased) (unchanged) by 0 calendar days and as a result of this Change Order is

now:   September 30, 2007
 



Other impacts to liability or obligation of Willbros or Cheniere under the Agreement: None

Upon execution of this Change Order by Cheniere and Willbros, the above-referenced change shall become a valid and binding part of the original Agreement without
exception or qualification, unless noted in this Change Order. Except as modified by this and any previously issued Change Orders, all other terms and conditions of the
Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. This Change Order is executed by each of the Cheniere’s Authorized Representative and Willbros’ Authorized Representative.
 
CHENIERE SABINE PASS PIPELINE COMPANY

Name  /s/ Stanley C. Horton
Cheniere’s Authorized Representative

Title  Chief Executive Officer
Date of
Signing  4/19/07

 
 
WILLBROS ENGINEERS, INC.

Name  /s/ Curtis E. Simkin
Willbros’ Authorized Representative

Title  President
Date of
Signing  4/25/07



CHANGE ORDER FORM

PROJECT NAME: 42-inch Sabine Pass Pipeline Project
COMPANY: Cheniere Sabine Pass Pipeline Company
CONTRACTOR: Willbros Engineers, Inc.
CHANGE ORDER NUMBER: CO-007
DATE OF CHANGE ORDER: April 10, 2007
DATE OF AGREEMENT: February 1, 2006
The Agreement between the Parties listed above is changed as follows: (attach additional documentation if necessary)
 

•  Cost of work adjustment due to unforeseeable / unprecedented escalation since original contract pricing. These apply to labor rates, per diems and certain 3rd party
equipment rates.

The total costs associated with this change will be transferred from the “Contingency Pool” to “Construction” and as such the “Guaranteed Maximum Price” prior to this change
order remains unchanged. The new lump sum price for “Construction” will have a net increase of $2,135,670 and the Contingency Pool will have a net decrease by a like
amount.

Adjustment to price under the Agreement:
 
The original Guaranteed Maximum Price was   $ 67,670,200 
Net change by previously authorized Change Orders (#1-6 )   ($ 951,269)
The Guaranteed Maximum Price prior to the Change Order was   $ 66,718,931 
The Guaranteed Maximum Price will be (increased)(decreased)(unchanged) by this Change Order in the amount of   $ -0- 
The new Guaranteed Maximum Price including this Change Order will be   $ 66,718,931 

Adjustment to dates:
 
The Preparation and Material Receipt Commencement Date will be (increased) (decreased) (unchanged) by 0 calendar days and as a result of this

Change Order is now:   January 1, 2007
The Construction Commencement Date will be (increased) (decreased) (unchanged) by 0 calendar days and as a result of this Change Order is now:   April 1, 2007
The Scheduled Mechanical Completion Date will be (increased) (decreased) (unchanged) by 0 calendar days and as a result of this Change Order is

now:   September 30, 2007
 



Other impacts to liability or obligation of Willbros or Cheniere under the Agreement: None

Upon execution of this Change Order by Cheniere and Willbros, the above-referenced change shall become a valid and binding part of the original Agreement without
exception or qualification, unless noted in this Change Order. Except as modified by this and any previously issued Change Orders, all other terms and conditions of the
Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. This Change Order is executed by each of the Cheniere’s Authorized Representative and Willbros’ Authorized Representative.
 
CHENIERE SABINE PASS PIPELINE COMPANY

Name  /s/ Stanley C. Horton
Cheniere’s Authorized Representative

Title  Chief Executive Officer
Date of
Signing  4/19/07

 
 
WILLBROS ENGINEERS, INC.

Name  /s/ Curtis E. Simkin
Willbros’ Authorized Representative

Title  President
Date of
Signing  4/25/07



CHANGE ORDER FORM

PROJECT NAME: 42-inch Sabine Pass Pipeline Project
COMPANY: Cheniere Sabine Pass Pipeline Company
CONTRACTOR: Willbros Engineers, Inc.
CHANGE ORDER NUMBER: CO-008
DATE OF CHANGE ORDER: April 11, 2007
DATE OF AGREEMENT: February 1, 2006
The Agreement between the Parties listed above is changed as follows: (attach additional documentation if necessary)
 

 •  A new Attachment III (WRPI construction rates for extra work) is attached which becomes effective 4/11/07 and expires 10/15/07. These rates replace those
included in the original Side Letter Agreement dated 2/1/06.

Adjustment to price under the Agreement:
 
The original Guaranteed Maximum Price was   $ 67,670,200 
Net change by previously authorized Change Orders (#1-7 )   ($ 951,269)
The Guaranteed Maximum Price prior to the Change Order was   $ 66,718,931 
The Guaranteed Maximum Price will be (increased)(decreased)(unchanged) by this Change Order in the amount of   $ -0- 
The new Guaranteed Maximum Price including this Change Order will be   $ 66,718,931 

Adjustment to dates:
 
The Preparation and Material Receipt Commencement Date will be (increased) (decreased) (unchanged) by 0 calendar days and as a result of this

Change Order is now:   January 1, 2007
The Construction Commencement Date will be (increased) (decreased) (unchanged) by 0 calendar days and as a result of this Change Order is now:   April 1, 2007
The Scheduled Mechanical Completion Date will be (increased) (decreased) (unchanged) by 0 calendar days and as a result of this Change Order is

now:   September 30, 2007
 



Other impacts to liability or obligation of Willbros or Cheniere under the Agreement: None

Upon execution of this Change Order by Cheniere and Willbros, the above-referenced change shall become a valid and binding part of the original Agreement without
exception or qualification, unless noted in this Change Order. Except as modified by this and any previously issued Change Orders, all other terms and conditions of the
Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. This Change Order is executed by each of the Cheniere’s Authorized Representative and Willbros’ Authorized Representative.
 
CHENIERE SABINE PASS PIPELINE COMPANY

Name  /s/ Stanley C. Horton
Cheniere’s Authorized Representative

Title  Chief Executive Officer
Date of
Signing  4/19/07

 
 
WILLBROS ENGINEERS, INC.

Name  /s/ Curtis E. Simkin
Willbros’ Authorized Representative

Title  President
Date of
Signing  4/25/07



Exhibit 10.2

SCHEDULE D-1
CHANGE ORDER FORM

(for use when the Parties mutually agree upon and execute the Change Order pursuant to Section 6.1B or 6.2C)
 
PROJECT NAME: Alternate Route 42” Single Line Option Creole Trail Pipeline -

Segment 3A Project
 

OWNER: Cheniere Creole Trail Pipeline, L.P.
 

CONTRACTOR: Sheehan Pipe Line Construction Company
 

DATE OF AGREEMENT: January 10, 2007  

CHANGE ORDER NUMBER: CCT 3A-001
 

DATE OF CHANGE ORDER: 05/25/07

 

The Agreement between the Parties listed above is changed as follows: (attach additional documentation if necessary, including payment method)
 

Adjustment to Estimated Contract Price
The original Estimated Contract Price was   $ 65,605,739.22
Net change by previously authorized Change Orders (# N/A)   $ 0.00
The Estimated Contract Price prior to this Change Order was   $ 65,605,739.22
The Estimated Contract Price will be increased by this Change Order in the amount of   $ 600,000.00
The new Estimated Contract Price including this Change Order will be   $ 66,205,739.22

Adjustment to dates in Project Schedule
The following dates are modified (list all dates modified; insert N/A if no dates modified): N/A
The Guaranteed Mechanical Completion Date will be unchanged by zero (0) Days.
The Guaranteed Mechanical Completion Date as of the date of this Change Order therefore is January 31, 2008.

The Guaranteed Substantial Completion Date will be unchanged by zero (0) Days.
The Guaranteed Substantial Completion Date as of the date of this Change Order therefore is February 29, 2008.
(attach additional documentation if necessary)

The Guaranteed Final Completion Date will be unchanged by zero (0) Days.
The Guaranteed Final Completion Date as of the date of this Change Order therefore is March 31, 2008.
(attach additional documentation if necessary)

Adjustment to other Changed Criteria (insert N/A if no changes or impact; attach additional documents if necessary)

Upon execution of this Change Order by Owner and Contractor, the above-referenced change shall become a valid and binding part of the original Agreement without
exception or qualification, unless noted in this Change Order. Except as modified by this and any previously issued Change Orders, all other terms and conditions of the
Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. This Change Order is executed by each of the Parties’ duly authorized representatives.
 

Cheniere Creole Trail Pipeline, L.P.   Sheehan Pipe Line Construction Company
Owner   Contractor

/s/ Stanley C. Horton   /s/ Robert A. Riess, Sr.
Signature   Signature

Stanley C. Horton   Robert A. Riess, Sr.
Name   Name

CEO   President & COO
Title   Title

6-20-07   7-5-07
Date of Signing   Date of Signing



SCHEDULE D-1
CHANGE ORDER FORM

(for use when the Parties mutually agree upon and execute the Change Order pursuant to Section 6.1B or 6.2C)
 
PROJECT NAME: Alternate Route 42” Single Line Option Creole Trail Pipeline -
Segment 3A Project
 

OWNER: Cheniere Creole Trail Pipeline, L.P.
 

CONTRACTOR: Sheehan Pipe Line Construction Company (SPLCC)
 

DATE OF AGREEMENT: January 10, 2007
 

SUBJECT: Compensation for Construction of pipe berms at Westlake Warehouse  

CHANGE ORDER NUMBER: CCT 3A-002
 

DATE OF CHANGE ORDER: 05/25/07

 

The Agreement between the Parties listed above is changed as follows: Per the terms and conditions outlined under Item #2 per the attached agreement letter between
Cheniere Creole Trail Pipeline, L.P. and Sheehan Pipe Line Construction Company dated May 25, 2007, Cheniere will compensate SPLCC for construction of berms for pipe
storage at the Westlake facility under the extra work rates in the Construction Agreement. Construction of berms will begin on Saturday, May 26, 2007. Materials such as sand
and visqueen will be invoiced at cost plus 15%. The estimated amount of the pipe berms is $100,000. Labor and equipment will be invoiced under the extra work rates in the
Construction Agreement.
 

Adjustment to Estimated Contract Price
The original Estimated Contract Price was   $ 65,605,739.22
Net change by previously authorized Change Orders   $ 600,000.00
The Estimated Contract Price prior to this Change Order was   $ 66,205,739.22
The Estimated Contract Price will be increased by this Change Order in the amount of   $ 100,000.00
The new Estimated Contract Price including this Change Order will be   $ 66,305,739.22

Adjustment to dates in Project Schedule
The following dates are modified (list all dates modified; insert N/A if no dates modified): N/A
The Guaranteed Mechanical Completion Date will be unchanged.
The Guaranteed Mechanical Completion Date as of the date of this Change Order therefore is January 31, 2008.

The Guaranteed Substantial Completion Date will be unchanged.
The Guaranteed Substantial Completion Date as of the date of this Change Order therefore is February 29, 2008.

The Guaranteed Final Completion Date will be unchanged.
The Guaranteed Final Completion Date as of the date of this Change Order therefore is March 31, 2008.

Adjustment to other Changed Criteria: N/A

Upon execution of this Change Order by Owner and Contractor, the above-referenced change shall become a valid and binding part of the original Agreement without
exception or qualification, unless noted in this Change Order. Except as modified by this and any previously issued Change Orders, all other terms and conditions of the
Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. This Change Order is executed by each of the Parties’ duly authorized representatives.
 

Cheniere Creole Trail Pipeline, L.P.   Sheehan Pipe Line Construction Company
Owner   Contractor

/s/ Randall E. Parr   /s/ Robert A. Riess, Sr.
Signature   Signature

Randall E. Parr   Robert A. Riess, Sr.
Name   Name

V.P., Marketing & Bus Dev   President & COO
Title   Title

7/3/07   7/5/07
Date of Signing   Date of Signing



SCHEDULE D-1
CHANGE ORDER FORM

(for use when the Parties mutually agree upon and execute the Change Order pursuant to Section 6.1B or 6.2C)
 
PROJECT NAME: Alternate Route 42” Single Line Option Creole Trail Pipeline -
Segment 3A Project
 

OWNER: Cheniere Creole Trail Pipeline, L.P.
 

CONTRACTOR: Sheehan Pipe Line Construction Company (SPLCC)
 

DATE OF AGREEMENT: January 10, 2007
 

SUBJECT: Reimbursement of wharfage fees for Westlake Yard
  

CHANGE ORDER NUMBER: CCT 3A-003
 

DATE OF CHANGE ORDER: 05/25/07

The Agreement between the Parties listed above is changed as follows: Per the terms and conditions outlined under Item #3 per attached agreement letter between Cheniere
Creole Trail Pipeline, L.P. and Sheehan Pipe Line Construction Company dated May 25, 2007, Cheniere will reimburse SPLCC for wharfage fees (pipe storage) imposed by the
Port of Lake Charles who are the owners of the Westlake property.
 

Adjustment to Estimated Contract Price
The original Estimated Contract Price was   $ 65,605,739.22
Net change by previously authorized Change Orders   $ 700,000.00
The Estimated Contract Price prior to this Change Order was   $ 66,305,739.22
The Estimated Contract Price will be increased by this Change Order in the amount of   $ 35,000.00
The new Estimated Contract Price including this Change Order will be   $ 66,340,739.22

Adjustment to dates in Project Schedule
The following dates are modified (list all dates modified; insert N/A if no dates modified): N/A
The Guaranteed Mechanical Completion Date will be unchanged.
The Guaranteed Mechanical Completion Date as of the date of this Change Order therefore is January 31, 2008.

The Guaranteed Substantial Completion Date will be unchanged.
The Guaranteed Substantial Completion Date as of the date of this Change Order therefore is February 29, 2008.

The Guaranteed Final Completion Date will be unchanged.
The Guaranteed Final Completion Date as of the date of this Change Order therefore is March 31, 2008.

Adjustment to other Changed Criteria: N/A

Upon execution of this Change Order by Owner and Contractor, the above-referenced change shall become a valid and binding part of the original Agreement without
exception or qualification, unless noted in this Change Order. Except as modified by this and any previously issued Change Orders, all other terms and conditions of the
Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. This Change Order is executed by each of the Parties’ duly authorized representatives.
 

Cheniere Creole Trail Pipeline, L.P.   Sheehan Pipe Line Construction Company
Owner   Contractor

/s/ Randall E. Parr   /s/ Robert A. Riess, Sr.
Signature   Signature

Randall E. Parr   Robert A. Riess, Sr.
Name   Name

V.P., Marketing & Bus Dev   President & COO
Title   Title

7/3/07   7/5/07
Date of Signing   Date of Signing



SCHEDULE D-1
CHANGE ORDER FORM

(for use when the Parties mutually agree upon and execute the Change Order pursuant to Section 6.1B or 6.2C)
 
PROJECT NAME: Alternate Route 42” Single Line Option
Creole Trail Pipeline - Segment 3A Project
 

OWNER: Cheniere Creole Trail Pipeline, L.P.
 

CONTRACTOR: Sheehan Pipe Line Construction
Company (SPLCC)
 

DATE OF AGREEMENT: January 10, 2007
 

SUBJECT: Reimbursement of Crushed Stone   

CHANGE ORDER NUMBER: CCT 3A-004
 
DATE OF CHANGE ORDER: 07/23/07

 

The Agreement between the Parties listed above is changed as follows: Per the terms and conditions outlined under Attachment J (Pricing Schedule) of the Construction
Agreement for Segment 3A project between Cheniere Creole Trail Pipeline, L.P. and Sheehan Pipe Line Construction Company dated January 10, 2007; the estimated quantity
to furnish and install crushed stone as described for Item No. C-15 is being revised from 405 tons to 3,600 tons (estimated quantity).

All crushed stone used to date (1,600 tons) was for the Westlake yard access. Inclement weather required the need for additional stone. The remaining estimated quantity of
2,000 tons will be utilized in accordance with Item No. C-15 description (furnish and install crushed stone for access road improvements).
 

Adjustment to Estimated Contract Price
 
The original Estimated Contract Price was   $ 65,605,739.22
Net change by previously authorized Change Orders   $ 735,000.00
The Estimated Contract Price prior to this Change Order was   $ 66,340,739.22
The Estimated Contract Price will be increased by this Change Order in the amount of   $ 127,800.00
The new Estimated Contract Price including this Change Order will be   $ 66,468,539.22

Adjustment to dates in Project Schedule
The following dates are modified (list all dates modified; insert N/A if no dates modified): N/A
The Guaranteed Mechanical Completion Date will be unchanged.
The Guaranteed Mechanical Completion Date as of the date of this Change Order therefore is January 31, 2008.
The Guaranteed Substantial Completion Date will be unchanged.
The Guaranteed Substantial Completion Date as of the date of this Change Order therefore is February 29, 2008.
The Guaranteed Final Completion Date will be unchanged.
The Guaranteed Final Completion Date as of the date of this Change Order therefore is March 31, 2008.
Adjustment to other Changed Criteria: N/A
Upon execution of this Change Order by Owner and Contractor, the above-referenced change shall become a valid and binding part of the original Agreement without
exception or qualification, unless noted in this Change Order. Except as modified by this and any previously issued Change Orders, all other terms and conditions of the
Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. This Change Order is executed by each of the Parties’ duly authorized representatives.
 
Cheniere Creole Trail Pipeline, L.P.   Sheehan Pipe Line Construction Company
Owner   Contractor

/s/ R. Keith Teague   /s/ Robert A. Riess, Sr.
Signature   Signature

R. Keith Teague   Robert A. Riess, Sr.
Name   Name

President   President & COO
Title   Title

8-3-07   8/8/07
Date of Signing   Date of Signing



SCHEDULE D-1
CHANGE ORDER FORM

(for use when the Parties mutually agree upon and execute the Change Order pursuant to Section 6.1B or 6.2C)
 
PROJECT NAME: Alternate Route 42” Single Line Option
Creole Trail Pipeline - Segment 3A Project
 

OWNER: Cheniere Creole Trail Pipeline, L.P.
 

CONTRACTOR: Sheehan Pipe Line Construction
Company (SPLCC)
 

DATE OF AGREEMENT: January 10, 2007
 

SUBJECT: Additional Compensation for Pipe Berms   

CHANGE ORDER NUMBER: CCT 3A-005
 
DATE OF CHANGE ORDER: 07/23/07

 

The Agreement between the Parties listed above is changed as follows: Per the terms and conditions outlined under Item #2 per the attached agreement letter between
Cheniere Creole Trail Pipeline, L.P. and Sheehan Pipe Line Construction Company dated May 25, 2007, Cheniere will compensate SPLCC for construction of berms for pipe
storage at the Westlake facility under the extra work rates in the Construction Agreement. Construction of berms will begin on Saturday, May 26, 2007. Materials such as sand
and visqueen will be invoiced at cost plus 15%. The revised amount of the pipe berms is $132,510.08. This value is $32,510.08 above the $100,000 estimate per Change Order
CCT-3A-002.
 

Adjustment to Estimated Contract Price
 
The original Estimated Contract Price was   $ 65,605,739.22
Net change by previously authorized Change Orders   $ 862,800.00
The Estimated Contract Price prior to this Change Order was   $ 66,468,539.22
The Estimated Contract Price will be increased by this Change Order in the amount of   $ 32,510.08
The new Estimated Contract Price including this Change Order will be   $ 66,501,049.30

Adjustment to dates in Project Schedule
The following dates are modified (list all dates modified; insert N/A if no dates modified): N/A
The Guaranteed Mechanical Completion Date will be unchanged.
The Guaranteed Mechanical Completion Date as of the date of this Change Order therefore is January 31, 2008.
The Guaranteed Substantial Completion Date will be unchanged.
The Guaranteed Substantial Completion Date as of the date of this Change Order therefore is February 29, 2008.
The Guaranteed Final Completion Date will be unchanged.
The Guaranteed Final Completion Date as of the date of this Change Order therefore is March 31, 2008.
Adjustment to other Changed Criteria: N/A
Upon execution of this Change Order by Owner and Contractor, the above-referenced change shall become a valid and binding part of the original Agreement without
exception or qualification, unless noted in this Change Order. Except as modified by this and any previously issued Change Orders, all other terms and conditions of the
Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. This Change Order is executed by each of the Parties’ duly authorized representatives.
 
Cheniere Creole Trail Pipeline, L.P.   Sheehan Pipe Line Construction Company
Owner   Contractor

/s/ R. Keith Teague   /s/ Robert A. Riess, Sr.
Signature   Signature

R. Keith Teague   Robert A. Riess, Sr.
Name   Name

President   President & COO
Title   Title

8-3-07   8/8/07
Date of Signing   Date of Signing



EXHIBIT 10.3

SCHEDULE D-1
CHANGE ORDER FORM

 
PROJECT NAME: Sabine Pass LNG Receiving,
Storage and Regasification Terminal
 
OWNER: Sabine Pass LNG, L.P.
 
CONTRACTOR: Bechtel Corporation
 
DATE OF AGREEMENT: December 18, 2004   

CHANGE ORDER NUMBER: SP/BE-046

 
DATE OF CHANGE ORDER: May 11, 2007
 
Marine Facilities Slope Protection
BUNDLE #9

 

The Agreement between the Parties listed above is changed as follows:
Lump Sum Work (Trend T-0062)
The Parties agree to the negotiated total Lump Sum Price of $21,578,500 (Twenty-one million, five hundred seventy-eight thousand, five hundred dollars) for performing the
Lump Sum Marine Work. The breakdown of the total Lump Sum Price is itemized on the attached “Detail Estimate” and is inclusive of Contractor’s costs and/or fees associated
with the Lump Sum Marine Work. Payment for the Lump Sum Work will follow the Payment Milestones attached hereto as Reference Document A2.

Provisional Sum Work (Trend T-0062a)
The Parties agree that the total Estimated Price Allowance for performing the Provisional Sum Marine Work is $3,631,032 (Three million, six hundred thirty-one thousand
thirty-two dollars) and is based on an estimated eight week schedule. The Estimated Price Allowance is based on the unit prices established in Weeks Marine Inc. (WMI)
proposal attached hereto as Reference Document B-2 and includes Contractor’s costs and/or fees associated with the Provisional Sum Marine Work. Payment for the
Provisional Sum Work will follow the Payment Milestones attached hereto as Reference Document B-3. Notwithstanding such payment, the total Estimated Price Allowance is
subject to adjustment (increase or decrease) based upon final WMI and Contractor costs for the Provisional Sum Marine Work. Any such adjustment will be reflected in a
subsequently issued Change Order.

Design Basis
Schedule A-2 of Attachment A of the Agreement is hereby amended to include the following “Rely Upon” information:

Design Basis Supplement for Slope Protection from Propeller Wash, Rev 6, dated 05-08-07

Warranty
Amend Section 12.1(E) of the Agreement to add a second paragraph as follows:
Notwithstanding the above, as it relates to the marine berth slope design and protection, the Warranty excludes remedy, and Contractor shall have no liability to Owner, for any
damage or defect to the extent caused by (i) Owner’s non-compliance with Construction Activities and Staging Area Limitation’s recommendations pursuant to Section 4.4 of
Report No. 5505-4017-3 titled “Dredged Embankment Slope Design Phase III” SDN 300025x2 (“Geotech Report”); (ii) Owner’s non-compliance with Maintenance and
Monitoring recommendations in accordance with Section 4.5 of the Geotech Report (iii) seismic events as measured by the USGS not defined as Force Majeure; (iv) wave and
mooring forces due to revised basin geometry and change from rocked slope to vertical sheetpile wall; (v) lack of slope protection above elevation six (6) feet; (vi) an event of
Force Majeure, (but only, with respect to obligations under Article 12, to the extent such event of Force Majeure occurs after Contractor’s provisional acceptance of the
subcontractor’s work); provided however, with respect to the requests to be notified of variations from the final design grade, all as set forth in Sections 4.4 and 4.5 of the
Geotech
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Report, Owner shall be considered “in compliance” with such requests to the extent Owner allows any qualified engineer or technician to perform such monitoring and
recommends corrective action.

REFERENCE DOCUMENTS:
 

A-1) Detail Estimate (T-0062)     $ 21,578,500
A-2) Payment Milestones – Lump Sum Settlement     

B-1) Detail Estimate (T-0062a)     $ 3,631,032
B-2) Bechtel Letter No.: SDN 25027-001-T07-GAM-024     
B-3) Payment Milestones – Provisional Sum Allowance     

Change Order SP/BE-046   TOTAL:  $ 25,209,532
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SCHEDULE D-1
CHANGE ORDER FORM

 
PROJECT NAME: Sabine Pass LNG Receiving, Storage and Regasification Terminal
 
OWNER: Sabine Pass LNG, L.P.
 
CONTRACTOR: Bechtel Corporation
 
DATE OF AGREEMENT: December 18, 2004   

CHANGE ORDER NUMBER: SP/BE-046

 
DATE OF CHANGE ORDER: May 11, 2007
 
Marine Facilities Slope Protection
BUNDLE #9

Adjustment to Contract Price
 
The original Contract Price was   $ 646,936,000
Net change by previously authorized Change Orders (#SP/BE-002 to 028, 031, 033 thru 035; 037 thru 045)   $ 132,299,472
The Contract Price prior to this Change Order was   $ 779,235,472
The Contract Price will be increased by this Change Order in the amount of   $ 25,209,532
The new Contract Price including this Change Order will be   $ 804,445,004

Adjustment to dates in Project Schedule
The following dates are modified:

The Target Bonus Date will be unchanged.
The Target Bonus Date as of the date of this Change Order therefore is April 3 2008 (1,095 Days following the NTP)

The Guaranteed Substantial Completion Date will be unchanged and is December 20, 2008.

The Guaranteed Substantial Completion Date as of the date of this Change Order therefore is 1,355 days following NTP.
Adjustment to other Changed Criteria: Not Applicable

Adjustment to Payment Schedule: See attachments

Adjustment to Minimum Acceptance Criteria: No Change
Adjustment to Performance Guarantees: No Change
Adjustment to Design Basis: No Change.
Other adjustments to liability or obligation of Contractor or Owner under the Agreement: No Change

This Change Order shall constitute a full and final settlement and accord and satisfaction of all effects of the change as described in this Change Order upon the Changed
Criteria and shall be deemed to compensate Contractor fully for such change.

Upon execution of this Change Order by Owner and Contractor, the above-referenced change shall become a valid and binding part of the original Agreement without
exception or qualification, unless noted in this Change Order. Except as modified by this and any previously issued Change Orders, all other terms and conditions of the
Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. This Change Order is executed by each of the Parties’ duly authorized representatives.
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SCHEDULE D-1
CHANGE ORDER FORM

 
PROJECT NAME: Sabine Pass LNG Receiving, Storage and Regasification Terminal
 
OWNER: Sabine Pass LNG, L.P.
 
CONTRACTOR: Bechtel Corporation
 
DATE OF AGREEMENT: December 18, 2004   

CHANGE ORDER NUMBER: SP/BE-046
 
 
DATE OF CHANGE ORDER: May 10, 2007
 
Marine Facilities Slope Protection
BUNDLE #9

/s/ Charif Souki   /s/ C. Asok Kumar
* Charif Souki   Contractor
Chairman   C. Asok Kumar

  Name
  Project Director
  Title

May 25, 2007   May 30, 2007
Date of Signing   Date of Signing

/s/ Stan Horton    
* Stan Horton
President & COO Cheniere Energy   

May 24, 2007    
Date of Signing   

/s/ Ed Lehotsky    
* Ed Lehotsky
Owner Representative   

May 25, 2007    
Date of Signing   
 
* Required Owner signature – Mr. Horton may sign on behalf of Mr. Souki during Mr. Souki’s absence.
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SCHEDULE D-1
CHANGE ORDER FORM

 
PROJECT NAME: Sabine Pass LNG Receiving, Storage and Regasification Terminal
 
OWNER: Sabine Pass LNG, L.P.
 
CONTRACTOR: Bechtel Corporation
 
DATE OF AGREEMENT: December 18, 2004  

CHANGE ORDER NUMBER: SP/BE- 047
 
DATE OF CHANGE ORDER: May 14, 2007
 
Willbros Site Access - Insurance Deductible

 

The Agreement between the Parties listed above is changed as follows:

Attachment O Article 1.Q of the Agreement is replaced in its entirety as follows:

Q. Deductibles. Contractor and Owner shall bear the cost of deductibles under the insurance provided by Contractor pursuant to this Attachment O, Revision 1 in accordance
with the allocation of risk found elsewhere in this Agreement; provided, however, with respect to a loss covered by the builder’s risk insurance policy or would have been
covered but for the existence of this deductible for a flood or windstorm event, Owner shall be responsible for that portion of the deductible greater than $2,000,000 but less
than $5,000,000. Additionally, with respect to a loss arising out of the acts of Willbros Engineers, Inc., its affiliates, contractors and subcontractors as covered by the builder’s
risk insurance policy or would have been covered but for the existence of a deductible, Owner shall be responsible for the deductible up to $500,000 per occurrence, except in
the case of wet works Owner shall be responsible for the deductible up to $ 1,000,000 per occurrence.
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SCHEDULE D-1
CHANGE ORDER FORM

 
PROJECT NAME: Sabine Pass LNG Receiving, Storage and Regasification Terminal
 
OWNER: Sabine Pass LNG, L.P.
 
CONTRACTOR: Bechtel Corporation
 
DATE OF AGREEMENT: December 18, 2004  

CHANGE ORDER NUMBER: SP/BE-047
 
DATE OF CHANGE ORDER: May 14, 2007
 
Willbros Site Access - Insurance Deductible

 

Adjustment to Contract Price
 
The original Contract Price was   $ 646,936,000
Net change by previously authorized Change Orders (#SP/BE-002 to 028, 031, 033 thru 035; 037 thru 046)   $ 132,299,472
The Contract Price prior to this Change Order was   $ 804,445,004
The Contract Price will be increased by this Change Order in the amount of   $ 0.00
The new Contract Price including this Change Order will be   $ 804,445,004

Adjustment to dates in Project Schedule
The following dates are modified:

The Target Bonus Date will be unchanged.
The Target Bonus Date as of the date of this Change Order therefore is April 3 2008 (1,095 Days following the NTP)

The Guaranteed Substantial Completion Date will be unchanged and is December 20, 2008.

The Guaranteed Substantial Completion Date as of the date of this Change Order therefore is 1,355 days following NTP.
Adjustment to other Changed Criteria: Not Applicable

Adjustment to Payment Schedule: No Change

Adjustment to Minimum Acceptance Criteria: No Change
Adjustment to Performance Guarantees: No Change
Adjustment to Design Basis: No Change.

Other adjustments to liability or obligation of Contractor or Owner under the Agreement: No Change

This Change Order shall constitute a full and final settlement and accord and satisfaction of all effects of the change as described in this Change Order upon the Changed
Criteria and shall be deemed to compensate Contractor fully for such change.

Upon execution of this Change Order by Owner and Contractor, the above-referenced change shall become a valid and binding part of the original Agreement without
exception or qualification, unless noted in this Change Order. Except as modified by this and any previously issued Change Orders, all other terms and conditions of the
Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. This Change Order is executed by each of the Parties’ duly authorized representatives.

Page 2 of 3



SCHEDULE D-1
CHANGE ORDER FORM

 
PROJECT NAME: Sabine Pass LNG Receiving, Storage and Regasification Terminal
 
OWNER: Sabine Pass LNG, L.P.
 
CONTRACTOR: Bechtel Corporation
 
DATE OF AGREEMENT: December 18, 2004  

CHANGE ORDER NUMBER: SP/BE-047
 
DATE OF CHANGE ORDER: May 14, 2007
 
Willbros Site Access - Insurance Deductible

 
        

/s/ Charif Souki
* Charif Souki
Chairman

  

/s/ C. Asok Kumar
Contractor

C. Asok Kumar
Name

Project Director
Title

May 25, 2007
Date of Signing   

May 30, 2007
Date of Signing

/s/ Stan Horton
* Stan Horton
President & COO Cheniere Energy   

5/24/07
Date of Signing   

/s/ Ed Lehotsky
* Ed Lehotsky
Owner Representative   

May 25, 2007
Date of Signing   

* Required Owner signature – Mr. Horton may sign on behalf of Mr. Souki during Mr. Souki’s absence.
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SCHEDULE D-1

CHANGE ORDER FORM
 
PROJECT NAME: Sabine Pass LNG Receiving, Storage and Regasification Terminal
 
OWNER: Sabine Pass LNG, L.P.
 
CONTRACTOR: Bechtel Corporation
 
DATE OF AGREEMENT: December 18, 2004

  

CHANGE ORDER NUMBER: SP/BE-048
 
DATE OF CHANGE ORDER: June 7, 2007
 
Bundle of Changes #10 –
(A) Master Gas Metering Changes;
(B) Plant Communication Changes;
(C) Correction of Change Order Amount Errors; and
(D) Operating Spare Part Allowance Credit.

The Agreement between the Parties listed above is changed as follows:
 

A. Master Gas Metering Skid (Trend T-1048)
Change Master Gas Metering from a prefabricated Metering Skid packaged unit to an unpackaged (component) metering station. The changes to the Master Gas Metering
Package are documented in design change notices (DCN) 25027-001-M6N-DK-00152, 25027-001-M6N-DK-00183, and 25027-001-M6N-DK-00195. In pertinent part,
the changes include the following:

1) Foundation changed from a concrete table-top to a structural steel platform;
2) Additional flow computer added and the number of flow meters increased from 3 to 4;
3) On/off piping valves added;
5) Two tie-ins for future meters added;
4) Piping tie-in for Phase 2 scope added;
6) On/off valve relocated; and
7) Pipe spools added for future valves.

 
B. Plant Communication Changes (Trend T-1067)
 •  Upgrade to Cisco Voice-Over Internet Protocol (VoIP) instead of NEC (Nippon Electric Company) telecommunications system.
 •  Upgrade Cisco Call Manager Server from MCS7925 to MCS 7835.
 •  Upgrade from CE500 switches to CE3560 switches.
 •  Reduce ATA Devices from eight (8) devices to four (4) devices.
 •  At tug berth area, replace existing turnstile/card reader/intercom installations with one centrally located junction box.
 •  At both jetty locations, replace existing turnstile/card reader/intercom installations with a junction box offering future connections for access control and electrical

power.
 
C. Change Order Amount Corrections (Trends T-1005/T-1058)

1) Change Order SP/BE-042 reflected an amount of $237,448 for Trend T-1005 (Gas Chromatograph). The correct amount should have been $223,059. This
Change Order represents a credit for the difference of -$14,389.
2) Change Order SP/BE-045 mistakenly omitted the amount for Trend T-1058 (Capital Asset Register) in the Adjustment to Contract Price section of the Change
Order. This Change Order represents a charge for Trend T-1058 in the amount of +$11,330.

The net credit for this line item #C is -$3,059.00.
 
D. Transfer of Operating Spare Part Allowance (Trend T-2003)

This Change Order represents a credit in the amount of -$2,164,436 to facilitate a transfer of the balance of the Operating Spare Part Allowance to Sabine Pass LNG, L.P.
as agreed per Reference Document D-3.
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REFERENCE DOCUMENTS:
 
A-1) Detail Estimate—Metering Station Changes (T-1048)   $2,850,000 
A-2) Payment Milestones—Metering Station Changes (T-1048)   

B-1) Detail Estimate—Telecom System Changes/Security/Turnstile Scope Reductions (T-1067)   $39,979 
B-2) Payment Milestones—Telecom System Changes/Security/Turnstile Scope Reductions (T-1067)   
B-3) SPLNG Letter 25027-001-L08-GAM-00014 dated 04/04/07   

C-1) Payment Milestones (T-1005)   ($3,059)
C-2) Payment Milestones (T-1058)   
C-3) Detail Estimate—Capital Asset Register (T-1058)   

D-1) Detail Estimate—Operating Spare Part Allowance (T-2003)   ($2,164,436)
D-2) Payment Milestones—Operating Spare Part Allowance (T-2003)   
D-3) Bechtel Correspondence 25027-001-T07-GAM-00035 dated 05/23/07   

Change Order SP/BE-048 TOTAL:  $722,484 
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SCHEDULE D-1
CHANGE ORDER FORM

 
PROJECT NAME: Sabine Pass LNG Receiving, Storage and Regasification Terminal
 
OWNER: Sabine Pass LNG, L.P.
 
CONTRACTOR: Bechtel Corporation
 
DATE OF AGREEMENT: December 18, 2004

  

CHANGE ORDER NUMBER: SP/BE-048
 
DATE OF CHANGE ORDER: June 7, 2007
 
Bundle of Changes #10 –
(A) Master Gas Metering Changes;
(B) Plant Communication Changes;
(C) Correction of Change Order Amount Errors; and
(D) Operating Spare Part Allowance Credit.

Adjustment to Contract Price
The original Contract Price was   $ 646,936,000
Net change by previously authorized Change Orders (#SP/BE-002 to 028, 031, 033 thru 035; 037 thru 0047)   $ 157,509,004
The Contract Price prior to this Change Order was   $ 804,445,004
The Contract Price will be increased by this Change Order in the amount of   $ 722,484
The new Contract Price including this Change Order will be   $ 805,167,488

Adjustment to dates in Project Schedule
The following dates are modified:
The Target Bonus Date will be unchanged.
The Target Bonus Date as of the date of this Change Order therefore is April 3 2008 (1,095 Days following the NTP)
The Guaranteed Substantial Completion Date will be unchanged December 20, 2008.
The Guaranteed Substantial Completion Date as of the date of this Change Order therefore is 1,355 days following NTP.
Adjustment to other Changed Criteria: Not Applicable
Adjustment to Payment Schedule: See attached “Payment Milestone – Metering Station Changes (T-1048), Telecommunication System Changes and Security/Turnstile Scope
of Work Reductions (T-1067), Credit for Gas Chromatograph foundation, piles and probes (T-1005), Capital Assets Register (T-1058) and Credit for residual balance of
Operating Spare Parts Allowance (T-2003).
Adjustment to Minimum Acceptance Criteria: No Change
Adjustment to Performance Guarantees: No Change
Adjustment to Design Basis: No Change.
Other adjustments to liability or obligation of Contractor or Owner under the Agreement: No Change
This Change Order shall constitute a full and final settlement and accord and satisfaction of all effects of the change as described in this Change Order upon the Changed
Criteria and shall be deemed to compensate Contractor fully for such change.
Upon execution of this Change Order by Owner and Contractor, the above-referenced change shall become a valid and binding part of the original Agreement without
exception or qualification, unless noted in this Change Order. Except as modified by this and any previously issued Change Orders, all other terms and conditions of the
Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. This Change Order is executed by each of the Parties’ duly authorized representatives.
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SCHEDULE D-1
CHANGE ORDER FORM

 
PROJECT NAME: Sabine Pass LNG Receiving, Storage and Regasification Terminal
 
OWNER: Sabine Pass LNG, L.P.
 
CONTRACTOR: Bechtel Corporation
 
DATE OF AGREEMENT: December 18, 2004

  

CHANGE ORDER NUMBER: SP/BE-048
 
DATE OF CHANGE ORDER: June 7, 2007
 
Bundle of Changes #10 –
(A) Master Gas Metering Changes;
(B) Plant Communication Changes;
(C) Correction of Change Order Amount Errors; and
(D) Operating Spare Part Allowance Credit.

 
  

/s/ Stan Horton   /s/ C. Asok Kumar
* Charif Souki
Chairman

  

Contractor

C. Asok Kumar
Name

Project Director
Title

7-3-07
Date of Signing   

7/9/07
Date of Signing

/s/ Stan Horton
* Stan Horton
President & COO Cheniere Energy   

 

7-3-07
Date of Signing   

 

/s/ Ed Lehotsky
* Ed Lehotsky
Owner Representative   

 

June 29, 2007
Date of Signing   

 

* Required Owner signature – Mr. Horton may sign on behalf of Mr. Souki during Mr. Souki’s absence.
 

Page 4 of 4



SCHEDULE D-1
CHANGE ORDER FORM

 
PROJECT NAME: Sabine Pass LNG Receiving, Storage and Regasification Terminal
 
OWNER: Sabine Pass LNG, L.P.
 
CONTRACTOR: Bechtel Corporation
 
DATE OF AGREEMENT: December 18, 2004  

CHANGE ORDER NUMBER: SP/BE-049
 
DATE OF CHANGE ORDER: June 11, 2007
 
Tank Subcontract Materials Adjustment

 

The Agreement between the Parties listed above is changed as follows:

In accordance with Article 7.1.E and Attachment EE, Rev. 1 of the Agreement, this Change Order represents an upward adjustment to the Contract Price to account for tank
subcontract material escalation in the months of October 2006 through April 2007 in the amount of $6,227,516.00. The breakdown by month of the material escalation amounts
are provided in the attached documentation.

The parties acknowledge that an additional $415,652.00 was not included in this Change Order and is disputed. The disputed amount is based on a disagreement as to the proper
calculation. Both parties agree to negotiate in good faith a resolution following submission by the tank subcontractor of additional data in support of its material escalation
calculation.

Change Order SP/BE-049 Total Amount:         $6,227,516.00

Attached Documents:
A-1 Detail Estimate Scope Trend (Trend #: T-2004)
A-2 Payment Milestone Schedule (Trend #: T-2004)
A-3 Tank Subcontractor Invoices

Reference Documents: SP/BE-006; SP/BE-033; SP/BE-041
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SCHEDULE D-1
CHANGE ORDER FORM

 
PROJECT NAME: Sabine Pass LNG Receiving, Storage and Regasification Terminal
 
OWNER: Sabine Pass LNG, L.P.
 
CONTRACTOR: Bechtel Corporation
 
DATE OF AGREEMENT: December 18, 2004  

CHANGE ORDER NUMBER: SP/BE-049
 
DATE OF CHANGE ORDER: June 8, 2007
 
Tank Subcontract Materials Adjustment

Adjustment to Contract Price
The original Contract Price was   $ 646,936,000
Net change by previously authorized Change Orders (#SP/BE-002 to 0028, 0031, 0033 to 0035; 037 through 47)   

  $ 157,509,004
The Contract Price prior to this Change Order was   $ 804,445,004
Bundle #10; Change Order SP-BE-048, dated June 7, 2007   $ 722,484
The Contract Price will be increased by this Change Order in the amount of   $ 6,227,516
The new Contract Price including this Change Order will be   $ 811,395,004

Adjustment to dates in Project Schedule
The following dates are modified:

The Target Bonus Date will be unchanged.

The Target Bonus Date as of the date of this Change Order therefore is April 3 2008 (1,095 Days following the NTP)

The Guaranteed Substantial Completion Date will be unchanged December 20, 2008.

The Guaranteed Substantial Completion Date as of the date of this Change Order therefore is 1355 days following NTP.
Adjustment to other Changed Criteria: Not Applicable

Adjustment to Payment Schedule: See attached “Payment Milestone – MHI / Matrix Material Escalation (T-2004).

Adjustment to Minimum Acceptance Criteria: No Change

Adjustment to Performance Guarantees: No Change

Adjustment to Design Basis: No Change.

Other adjustments to liability or obligation of Contractor or Owner under the Agreement: No Change

This Change Order shall constitute a full and final settlement and accord and satisfaction of all effects of the change as described in this Change Order upon the Changed
Criteria and shall be deemed to compensate Contractor fully for such change.

Upon execution of this Change Order by Owner and Contractor, the above-referenced change shall become a valid and binding part of the original Agreement without
exception or qualification, unless noted in this Change Order. Except as modified by this and any previously issued Change Orders, all other terms and conditions of the
Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. This Change Order is executed by each of the Parties’ duly authorized representatives.
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SCHEDULE D-1
CHANGE ORDER FORM

 
PROJECT NAME: Sabine Pass LNG Receiving, Storage and Regasification Terminal
 
OWNER: Sabine Pass LNG, L.P.
 
CONTRACTOR: Bechtel Corporation
 
DATE OF AGREEMENT: December 18, 2004  

CHANGE ORDER NUMBER: SP/BE-049
 
DATE OF CHANGE ORDER: June 8, 2007
 
Tank Subcontract Materials Adjustment

 
  

/s/ Charif Souki   /s/ C. Asok Kumar
* Charif Souki
Chairman

  

Contractor

C. Asok Kumar
Name

Project Director
Title

7-3-07
Date of Signing   

7/9/07
Date of Signing

/s/ Stan Horton
* Stan Horton
President & COO Cheniere Energy   

 

7-3-07
Date of Signing   

 

/s/ Ed Lohotsy
* Ed Lehotsky
Owner Representative   

 

June 29, 2007
Date of Signing   

 

 
* Required Owner signature—Mr. Horton may sign on behalf on Mr. Souki during Mr. Souki’s absence.
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Exhibit 10.4

CHANGE ORDER FORM
(for use when the Parties execute the Change Order pursuant to Section 32 of the General Conditions)

 
PROJECT NAME:   Sabine Pass LNG Project (Phase 2)

CHANGE ORDER NUMBER:   005

DATE OF CHANGE ORDER:   May 31, 2007

PURCHASER:   Sabine Pass LNG, L.P.

SOIL CONTRACTOR:   Remedial Construction Services, L.P.

CONTRACT NO.   25279-004-OC2-C000-00001

DATE OF AGREEMENT:   July 21, 2006
 

The Agreement between the Parties listed above is charged as follows: (attach additional documentation if necessary)

Description of Change: This Change Order No. 005 is issued to incorporate into the Contract the modification made to Contract Exhibit “C”, FORM “A”, FORM A-1,
FORM A-5 and FORM A-6 dated May 31, 2007, which supersedes and replace in its entirely the previous version of the same document in the Contract.

Attachments:

1) Contract Exhibit “C”, FORM A, FORM A-1, FORM A-5 and FORM A-6 dated May 31, 2007.

2) CO 05 Attachment for actual cost breakdown for Change Order No. 005.
 

 
The original contract price was   $   28,526,962.28 

  

Net Change by previously authorized Change Orders   $   3,755,037.40 
  

The Contract Price prior to this Change Order   $   32,281,999.68 
  

The Contract Price will be increased <decreased> by this Change Order amount of   $   (3,930,641.95)
  

The New Contract Price including this Change Order will be   $       28,351,357.73 
  

Upon execution of this Change Order by Sabine Pass LNG, L.P. and Remedial Construction Services, L.P. the above referenced change shall become a valid and binding part of
the original agreement without exception or qualification unless noted in this Change Order. Except as modified by this and any previously issued Change Orders, all other
terms and Condition of the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. This Change Order is executed by each of the Parties’ duly authorized representatives.
 
Purchaser:   Soil Contractor:

Sabine Pass LNG, L.P.   Remedial Construction Services, L.P.
By:

 
Sabine Pass LNG-GP, Inc.,
Its general partner    

 
Authorized
Signature:  /s/ Carlos Macias   

Authorized
Signature:  /s/ Steven R. Birdwell

Name:  Carlos Macias   Name:  Steven R. Birdwell

Title:  Dir. Proj. Mgmt   Title:  Managing Partner

Date of
Signing:  Jun. 1, 2007   

Date of
Signing:  6/12/07
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Exhibit 10.5

CHANGE ORDER FORM
 
PROJECT NAME: Sabine Pass LNG Phase 2
Receiving, Storage and Re-Gasification Terminal
Expansion (“Phase 2 Project”)
 

COMPANY: Sabine Pass LNG, L.P.
 

CONTRACTOR: Bechtel Corporation
 

DATE OF AGREEMENT: July 21, 2006  

CHANGE ORDER NUMBER:     SP2/BE-004    
 

DATE OF CHANGE ORDER:     May 29, 2007    
 

ADJUSTMENT TO CONTRACTOR’S FIXED FEE
NO#1

 

The Agreement between the Parties listed above is changed as follows:

Increase in the Fixed Fee associated with the implementation of the following agreed Scope Changes:
 
1.      Revise Plot Plan and Expand SCV Layout

Adjust submerged combustible vaporizer (SCV) layout from duplicate design of Phase 1 to modified spacing arrangement to align with the first set of
eight (8) ambient air vaporizer (AAV) trains planned for installation in Phase 2. Re-work of existing dike area north of the SCV foundations.
Reference Trend No. F-0001   $ 1,177,000

2.      Open Cell Marine Tug Boat Berth   
a)      Supply, install and hookup of the electrical and instrument scope of the line tensioning system   
b)      Supply and install laser docking aid system for each berth using proprietary technology called SMARTDOCK software   
c)      Implement fender-line range board requirements modified by SPLNG with engineering specification developed by Lanier   
d)      Install fender piles (if required), fenders, bollards and all other related marine components for the tugs   
e)      Utilities scope for Phase 2 will include fire water, potable water and electrical power   
f)      Installation of patented Open Cell sheet pile wall   
g)      Dredging of the tug berth   
h)      Installation of riprap from Mooring Dolphin to the first cell   

Reference Trend No. F-0004   $ 16,736,000

3.      Extend Pipe Rack Piling for 21R   
Extend piling installation for pipe rack 21R to the west side of LNG tank S-105 dike area to accommodate future expansion of LNG Tank S-106 while
LNG tank S-105 is in operation.   
Reference Trend No. F-0009   $ 672,000

4.      Install Heavy Haul Access Road   
Construct a heavy haul access road to the Phase 2 tank area to accommodate piling and tank material deliveries from the construction dock.   
Reference Trend No. F-0015   $ 486,000

5.      Pipeline Compressor Study   
Perform a study to investigate installation of a reciprocating compressor for boosting the BOG pressure to enable it to be delivered to the pipeline at the
prevailing pipeline operating pressure.   
Reference Trend No. F-0022   $ 70,000

6.      High Pressure Pipeline Compressor   
Provide, install a high pressure pipeline compressor into the design scope of Phase 2 project to provide the ability to increase the BOG pressure to
enable it to be delivered to the pipeline at the prevailing pipeline operating pressure for SPLNG Re-gasification Terminal.   
Reference Trend No. F-0038   $ 6,259,000

Total Changes:   $ 25,400,000
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PROJECT NAME: Sabine Pass LNG Phase 2
Receiving, Storage and Re-Gasification Terminal
Expansion (“Phase 2 Project”)
 
COMPANY: Sabine Pass LNG, L.P.
 
CONTRACTOR: Bechtel Corporation
 
DATE OF AGREEMENT: July 21, 2006  

CHANGE ORDER NUMBER:     SP2/BE-004    
 
DATE OF CHANGE ORDER:     May 29, 2007    
 
ADJUSTMENT TO CONTRACTOR’S FIXED FEE
NO#1

 

The Total Changes listed above increase the cost of the Phase 2 Project by US$25,400,000. Pursuant to Section 7.2 of Article 7 of the Agreement, for each US$5,000,000
increase in the cost of the Phase 2 Project, individually or in the aggregate, the Fixed Fee will be adjusted by US$200,000. Consequently, this Change Order represents an
adjustment to the Fixed Fee in the amount of US$1,000,000 (4% x $25,000,000). The remaining $ 400,000 of the Total Changes will added to a future Change Order when the
next US$5,000,000 threshold is achieved.
 
References:   Bechtel Letter No. 25279-001-T006-GAM-00012

  

Bechtel Letter No. 25279-001-T006-GAM-00013
Bechtel Letter No. 25279-001-T006-GAM-00027
Bechtel Letter No. 25279-001-T006-GAM-00042
Bechtel Letter No. 25279-001-T007-GAM-00007
Bechtel Letter No. 25279-001-T007-GAM-00009
Attachment A – SCV Layout
Attachment B – Marine Berth
Attachment C – Pipe Rack 21R Extension
Attachment D – Heavy Haul Access Road
Attachment E – Pipeline Compressor Study
Attachment F – High Pressure Pipeline Compressor
Attachment G – Fixed Fee Table

 

Adjustment to Contractor’s Fixed Fee
 
The original Fixed Fee was   $ 18,500,000

Change in Fixed Fee by previously authorized Change Orders   $ -0-    

The Fixed Fee prior to this Change Order was   $ 18,500,000

The Fixed Fee will be increased by this Change Order in the amount of   $ 1,000,000

The new Fixed Fee including this Change Order will be   $ 19,500,000

This Change Order shall constitute a full and final settlement and accord and satisfaction of all effects of the change as described in this Change Order #004 upon the Fixed Fee
and shall be deemed to compensate Bechtel fully for such change.

Upon execution of this Change Order by Company and Contractor, the above-referenced change shall become a valid and binding part of the original Agreement without
exception or qualification, unless noted in this Change Order. Except as modified by this and any previously issued Change Orders, all other terms and conditions of the
Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. This Change Order is executed by each of the Parties’ duly authorized representatives.
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PROJECT NAME: Sabine Pass LNG Phase 2 Receiving, Storage and Re-Gasification
Terminal Expansion (“Phase 2 Project”)
 
COMPANY: Sabine Pass LNG, L.P.
 
CONTRACTOR: Bechtel Corporation
 
DATE OF AGREEMENT: July 21, 2006  

CHANGE ORDER NUMBER:         SP2/BE-004
 
DATE OF CHANGE ORDER:         May 29, 2007
 
ADJUSTMENT TO CONTRACTOR’S FIXED FEE NO#1

 

 
  

/s/ Stan Horton   /s/ Jose Montalvo
* Charif Souki
Chairman

6-14-07
Date of Signing

  

Contractor

Jose Montalvo
Name

Project Manager
Title

 
  

18 Jun 07
Date of Signing

/s/ Stan Horton
* Stan Horton
President & COO Cheniere Energy   

 

6-14-07
Date of Signing   

 

/s/ Ed Lehotsky
* Ed Lehotsky
Owner Representative   

 

June 14, 2007
Date of Signing   

 

 
* Required Owner signature – Mr. Horton may sign on behalf of Mr. Souki during Mr. Souki’s absence.

Page 3 of 3



EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATION BY CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER PURSUANT TO
RULE 13a-14(a) AND 15d-14(a) UNDER THE EXCHANGE ACT

I, Charif Souki, certify that:
 

1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Cheniere Energy, Inc.;
 

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light
of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

 

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition,
results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

 

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-
15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

 

 
a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material

information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in
which this report is being prepared;

 

 
b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide

reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles;

 

 c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the
disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

 

 
d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the

registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting; and

 

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors
and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

 

 a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely
affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

 

 b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial
reporting.

Date: August 8, 2007
 

/S/    CHARIF SOUKI        
Charif Souki

Chief Executive Officer



EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATION BY CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO RULE 13a-14(a) AND 15d-14(a) UNDER THE EXCHANGE ACT

I, Don A. Turkleson, certify that:
 

1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Cheniere Energy, Inc.;
 

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light
of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

 

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition,
results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

 

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-
15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

 

 
a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material

information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in
which this report is being prepared;

 

 
b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide

reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles;

 

 c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the
disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

 

 
d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the

registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting; and

 

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors
and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

 

 a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely
affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

 

 b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial
reporting.

Date: August 8, 2007
 

/S/    DON A. TURKLESON        
Don A. Turkleson

Chief Financial Officer



EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION BY CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the quarterly report of Cheniere Energy, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q for the period ending June 30, 2007 as filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Charif Souki, Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to
§ 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, to my knowledge, that:
 

 (1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and
 

 (2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.
 

/S/    CHARIF SOUKI        
Charif Souki

Chief Executive Officer

August 8, 2007



EXHIBIT 32.2

CERTIFICATION BY CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the quarterly report of Cheniere Energy, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q for the period ending June 30, 2007 as filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Don A. Turkleson, Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted
pursuant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, to my knowledge, that:
 

 (1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and
 

 (2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.
 

/S/    DON A. TURKLESON        
Don A. Turkleson

Chief Financial Officer

August 8, 2007


	Index to Financial Statements
	Index to Financial Statements
	Index to Financial Statements
	Index to Financial Statements
	Index to Financial Statements
	Index to Financial Statements
	Index to Financial Statements
	Index to Financial Statements
	Index to Financial Statements
	Index to Financial Statements
	Index to Financial Statements
	Index to Financial Statements
	Index to Financial Statements
	Index to Financial Statements
	Index to Financial Statements
	Index to Financial Statements
	Index to Financial Statements
	Index to Financial Statements
	Index to Financial Statements
	Index to Financial Statements
	Index to Financial Statements
	Index to Financial Statements
	Index to Financial Statements
	Index to Financial Statements
	Index to Financial Statements
	Index to Financial Statements
	Index to Financial Statements
	Index to Financial Statements
	Index to Financial Statements
	Index to Financial Statements
	Index to Financial Statements
	Index to Financial Statements
	Index to Financial Statements
	Index to Financial Statements
	Index to Financial Statements
	Index to Financial Statements
	Index to Financial Statements
	Index to Financial Statements
	Index to Financial Statements
	Index to Financial Statements
	Index to Financial Statements
	Index to Financial Statements
	Index to Financial Statements
	Index to Financial Statements
	Index to Financial Statements
	Index to Financial Statements

